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HI.

The two additional sections are on the web: htips://www.nature.scot/professional-
advice/protected-areas-and-species/licensing/species-licensing-2-guide/red-grouse-and

licensing

» Determining the area of land to which the licence relates

* Approach to enforcement
In relation to NatureScot’s power to suspend or revoke under section 16 AA{9){b)(ii),
where the relevant offence has been committed on the land to which the licence relates
but cutside of the area on which killing or taking is permitted by the licence, NatureScot
witl only suspend or revoke where it is satisfied that there is a connection between the
relevant offence and the management of the area on which killing or taking is permitted
by the licence.

We haven’t made changes to the Framework document itself - but | see a further email on this.

NatureScot |Great Glen House | Inverness | IV3 8NW | 01463-|_

nature.scot | @nature_scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

From:_@scottishlandandestates.co.uk>
Sent: Thursday, July 25, 2024 9:58 AM
To:_@nature.scot>

: @nature.scot>;_
@scottishiandandestates.co.uk>;_@nature.scot>;

@nature.scot>
Subject: RE: Follow Up - Section 16AA Licensing

Cautionl This message was sent from outside NatureScot.
i

I'm struggling a little today - but could call after 3.30? no change from our side as we wont have
further legal advice until after 29 July.- mentioned the socials as part of your comms
plan as well as updated guidance for applicants, if you were able to share any updates that
would be really hetpful.

Let me know what time suits later



Regards

Sents Thursday, July 25, 2024 9;18 AM

Ce!

Subject: RE: Fodlow Lip - Sechion 1644 Licensing

Do you have some time later this morning or afterncon for a quick telaphone call? Just

conscious we haven't touched base this week.

We will also look to put some basic comms today on social media around need for licences
before 12" August and link to where to apply - | think[i] mentioned this last week.

Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2024 3:13 PM

Subject: RE: Follow Up - Section 1644 Licensing

ﬂear- &t al

I wanted to update you on discussions we are having internally and with legal advisers - we ara
awaiting further advice from our KC and don’t plan to issue any further guidance to members
for the time being.

We really appreciate the ongoing discussions and the acceptance of some of the points we
have made, but our fundamental issue in relation to the area to which the licence relates

remains. Therafore, our adwvice 1o Members to delay applications 15 stll in place.

Wea will be in touch as soon as we receive further advice Trom the !'-’.{.‘._

I am back anline on Friday.



Bestregards

Sents Tuesday, July 16, 2024 4;02 PR

Subject: RE: Fodlow Up - Seclion 16445 Licensing

Bl
#d | would come back [o you with some additional thoughts on the administrative boundary of the
A Nl T i 1 TN & 1§ gL FTLR IcER A |

n principle, we accept that there will be areas within the land holding boundary which are not
ket ta any land management actnaly, such as villlages or areas sssgned exclusively Tor other
Dusiness or recreational wse and we are therefore comiortable these should be excluded fTom the

(M =dgln: 1tion whiere |t preteraide &nd, ol ar for t F" anik o

£ ir et aligrung apphicat 5 With sporting lease It our view that i certain circumstance

t maybe appropriate for the area of the sporting lease to constitute the area of land to which the
icence relates. Our expectation though s that this will be the exception rather than the norm and wil
address those |arger properties ¢ !'__..'- where the spi rting beats are | Barly
defined and are almost akin to small estates in their ocwn right

ind the team grectly to work through themn
Mope thiat s helptul, | yaditional t I Ents ma INT=L [oh, 1 Al uton 1 TiE
BASELIE s Ei bear

furescol | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Albg

Pronouns: hefhim | 1f you recefve this email kate at night or earty in the morning it means | am working flexibly but

please do not feal that you have o pick this up outside of your own normal working houwrs.,

Sent: 16 July HMi24 1.2:45



_ @scottishlandandestates.co.uk>

Subject: RE: Follow Up - Section 16AA Licensing

Thank you for your email and the discussion yesterday.

You will appreciate that NatureScot has taken legal advice on our approach, including in relation to
the area of land to which the licences will relate, and we are comfortable that the process is robust.
However, it would obviously be better if we can find a solution that stakeholders are comfortable
with, provided that it continues to give effect to the legislative intention. So, on that basis there are a
number of things that we can do to address most, if not all, of the concerns raised below:

3. The perceived link between other types of game shooting (e.g., pheasant & red-legged
partridge) and raptor persecution should not be addressed by expanding the land to which the
licence relates. It is on the parliamentary record that such a correlation would be addressed by
the addition of said birds to schedule 2 part 1B, at which point the land to which a section
16AA licence would relate might reasonably expand. — Agreed — that is not what we are
proposing to do. This licence relates to Grouse Moor Management.

4. Atenant cannot be reasonably expected to ensure compliance with a code of practice over
land to which they have no formal rights (and vice-versa). —Agreed (although there is no
obligation to ensure compliance) — so we will address this by changing the wording of the of the
licence - Condition 2 of the Licence will be amended to state " You [as the Licence holder] must
have regard for the code of practice https.//www.nature.scot/doc/quidance-code-practice-
grouse-moor-management

6. A tenant may not possess a map illustrating the landholding boundary — this is understood, but
surely not insurmountable in discussion with the owner?

| accept that some of these changes may not allay your main concerns about licensable area, but as
you know in the interest of efficiency of process and to enable all those who wish to shoot grouse the
opportunity to do so at the start of the season on 12 August, we are offering an automated service



which provides a default Hoence in which the Hoensable area will be the land hdding boundary as

provided by the applicant

For applicants who are looking for @ more nuanced licensable area (and | hope those are in the
minority) then those individuals will need to contact the Licensing Team direct and we can manually
assess the proposed Despoke area. However, applcants will need to be made aware that the ime
tRvhved in assessing a bespoke area means they may nol have their lcence in place for the start of
the grouse season, therefore it may be prudent to commit to the adaptive approach you suggest
below and over ime and refing the boundary to which the licence relates and we can modily those

lieences actordimgly

Fenally, If any of vour members are minded to appeal at this :.rdl.:c: BeEcause they are nol happy with
the conditions attached (o the licence that i ssued = | would have thought thatl agreement could be
reached that cne appeal can be advanced and that we will adapt the scheme in accordance with any

dECISHON A% Fequimsd

hope that is helpful. We have some time scheduled to discuss this afternoon and hopefully agree
this as a way forward

find Regards

nature.scol | Scotlond’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nodair na h-Alba

Pronouns: hefhim | If you receive this email late at night or early in the morning it means | am working flexibly but
please do not feel that you have 1o pick this up outside of your own normal working hours.

Sant: 15 luly 2024 13:22

To: Enaiure scoi=

Cc: @scoflishlandandestates co U“i_

..-:ll-...':|'.| ECC g
Subject: Follow Up - Section 16AA Licensing
Importance: High

Thanks for your time, and especially to ynu,-, for dialling on while on n-nlmzqr..anu |
spoke following our discussion and just wanted to follow-up with a couple of points.

The first is that SLE's preferred option by far would be to designate land managed for the
purposes of killing / taking red grouse as the land to which the licence relates. This would
be in line with the legislation and, crucially, would cover the commissioning of any relevant
offences undertaken in pursuit of grouse moor management. i it would be of comiiort to
MatureScot to take an adaptive management approach - where the boundary of the land to
which the licence relates relative to the commissioning of relevant offences by relevant
persons is monitored - then we would be comfortable with that. Adopting this option would



cause minimum disruption to what has already been prepared, and SLE would make clear in
subsequent guidance that any land being managed for the purposes of killing / taking red
grouse should be shaded in blue, thereby constituting the land to which the licence will relate.
This option is unlikely to result in any challenges to the Sheriff Court by prospective applicants,
and would only require minor tweaking to NatureScot’s existing guidance.

The other options discussed are likely to result in an outcome which SLE would not consider
helpful at this crucial stage: namely the submission of applications which contain
conscientious objections to the land to which the licence relates (currently proposed as being
the landholding boundary). This may take a number of forms, but would ultimately result in
licences being rejected and appeals subsequently lodged to the Sheriff Court. In that
eventuality, our legal advice suggests that any Sheriff would likely be sympathetic to the
following points, most of which we have discussed:

=

o

3. The perceived link between other types of game shooting (e.g., pheasant & red-legged
partridge) and raptor persecution should not be addressed by expanding the land to
which the licence relates. Itis on the parliamentary record that such a correlation would
be addressed by the addition of said birds to schedule 2 part 1B, at which point the land
to which a section 16AA licence would relate might reasonably expand.

4. Atenant cannot be reasonably expected to ensure compliance with a code of practice
over land to which they have no formal rights (and vice-versa).

6. Atenant may not possess a map illustrating the landholding boundary.

In summary, we feel an adaptive management approach which designates land managed for
the purposes of killing / taking red grouse would likely strike the right balance given where we
are. It would also avoid an immediate rush of appeals which are likely to reverberate and
undermine the confidence in the licensing scheme at-large.

Happy to chat further on this and will issue guidance to members once your position is
crystallised.

Best wishes,

Scottish Land & Estates
Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB

I\/I:_ T:_ W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @ScotlL andEstates
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Frommg
Sailsjecty ] weeny O
[haites 31 July B34 LT ER2S

Caulionl This message was senl inom oulssds NaluraScol

.

Fleasa see my responses below — | think this covers all of the points for me, but let me Know if not o if
any clarification is required

Find regards,

ax 141 & 3

Recomirmendad in Commsncis) Lafngalon, Medus & Ernferarinment
Professiona Neghponoe, Sporl and Lispoio

rror: I - -

Sant: Tuesday, July 30, 2024 4:36 PM

To: _ {Bharpermacleod.couk>

Subject: RE: SLE discussion 297772024
i
_ catching up on grousa icence discussions.

Itwould be good Lo catch up on the guestions in the email below. | also have some other
queres from another stakeholder, which it would be good to check our proposed answers o,
| will get them across to you separately.

Have you got some time tomorrow?

Many thanks,

frorn: R 1>



Recomymanded & Comvirencal Livabon, Medva & Ernleyiarynen Profes s

MNaglgaice, Soon snd Lo

Sent: Friday, August 16, 2024 4:37 PM

Tﬂ-:_ﬁ_ﬂ |1.1r;|.'-|:-|-'r|.||: laad, co. k>

Subject: Re: MatureScot

e[
Thanks for your email. It's always helpful to get something down inwriting and "test’ that.

I'm travelling back to Edinburgh this weakand but will look at in the early part of next weaek.

Kind regards

Sant from my phone - please excusa typos and informal languages.

B ciomacdvocates.com

www. axiomadvocates.com

Cerking tesr: I

On 16 Aug 2024, at 1 '.'-':?9.—@11harpﬁrmacleﬂd.I:t:u.uk.ﬁ wrote:
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Cautsonl This message was sent froam oulside MaburaSool

Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Intended for Subject Holdars Only.
Good Mornming All,

I hope this finds you well. We are looking forwand to catching up with you tomormow following
our discussion last week on the land to which the licence relates for the purposas of 2sction
16AA licensing.

We hawve had the opportunity to confer internally and with key mamber sub-groups since our
last meating. Suffice to say we remain committed to resolving this matter collaboratively rathar
than litigiously, and we will do all we can to assist you in finding a resolution. Please do not
hasitate to reach out should you reguire any input from us.

That said, | am sure you will appreciate that we also have an obligation to safeguard our
membears' legal interests. To ensure this, this matter must be resolved no Llater than 15
September 2024, You will appreciate that there are timescales associated with legal challenges
which we would be bounded should a collaborative resolution fail to materialise, and it is for
that reason we have sat the deadline we hava,

We are confident that a collaborative resolution will be found shead of then and look forward to
wiorking with you on this. Please let us know if you have any questions.

With best wishes,

seoltiah Land & Estabees

Eruart Howse, Eslomills Business Park. Muosselbwreh EH=21 7FB

W L

Join today...



From:_ -_nature.scot)
Sent: Wednesday, August 14, 2024 5:10 PM

_ _scottlshlandandestates co.uk>; _
_nature scot>; ||| G _nature scot>
Cc:_ _scottishlandandestates co.uk>; _
_g|llesp|emacandrew co.uk; _ {Scotland) _basc org.uk>; -
[ E 0 [EoiEResed 800 [ EGEENSE 0 [ERGGIENe |
- _nature.scot>

Subject: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Opinion of Senior Counsel - The tLand to

which the Section 16AA Licence Reiates

Hl-

Many thanks te you all for taking the time for the helpful and constructive chat this afternoon.

From a quick look at calendars 10:00 - 10:30 or 12:00 to 12:30 look like possibilities. I’'m aware
that we may prefer longer than half an hour so | will look to see if | can stretch either of these
slots.

| hope this helps and will wait to hear back to whether or not these times suit.

Many thanks,

From: _ -scottishlandandestates.co.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, August 14, 2024 4:58 PM

I oo

R R ..o R
_glllesglemacandrew.co.uk,- {Scotland) _basc.org.uk);-

- nature.scet>; nature.scot>

Subject: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Opinion of Senior Counsel - The Land to
which the Section 16AA Licence Relates

nature.scot>

With thanks for your time this afternoon - greatly appreciated.

If | could ask you to share your availability for Friday 23 August we will consult internally and
revert with a suitable time — hope that’s OK.

As discussed, SLE is due to have a meeting with some key members at 1700 on Monday 19



August via M5 Teams. [f it would be possible for a representative from NaturaScot to attend

than that would be greatly appreciated.

Bast wishas,

vt [ *: B 5100 Wi scottishludandestates co.uk Twitter: @ScotLandEstat

dORiad r._.;_|.-,_1, x

Sent: Wednesday, August 14, 2024 1:15 PM

Tﬂ'_ oo I o

scollishiandandesiabes couk>;
gillespiemacandrew.co.uk; (Scotland) *J cue- [
nakture.scok>; [Evidence) < basc :_-:'E.ul::.-..

Subjact: RE: Restricted, unlldumlul .1 Lr'gdll'.' Privileged Dpllmm of Senor Counsel - The Land to
which the Section 16AA Licence Relales

o problem ] - thanks for confirming. JJ will join at 1630 unless her previous call finishes

early

“_ « N 5100 Wi scottishiandandestates co.uk Twitters fScotl andEstates
H B B l I

Jorkil |||J|;l|:l'



Etl‘ll Wednesday, August 14, 2024 1:14 FM

To: [ N st ancandestates.co.

nafure seot>

scottishigndangestates Co uk>;
gillespiemacandrew.co.uk; [Scotland) « basc.org.uk> -
'umr-:_m'. F (Evidence) l;.fhg org.uk> .

Subject: RE: Resincied, Confidential & L-e-,_.:.]ll',' Privale ged I"."pmhlrr @l Senor I.'|::Jr|~.|*| TI|-:~ Land (o
which the Section 16AA Licence Relates

8 hard finish at 17 s weould prefer to stick wilh the immg we have plonned o

[ | Scoth ,r,n*-, Nofure Agency | Burdheann MNodar ng h-Alba

Promouns: hedhim | f yvou receive this email late at night or early in the maming it means | am working flesibly but

please do not fesl that you have 0o pick this up outside of your csn nonmal working hours.

From: | - - s andandestates.couk>

Santi 14 August 2024 12:26

N e p—

scottishiandandestaies.couks;
gillespiemacandrew.co.uk: [Scotland) basc.org.uk .~;-
nature scol; (Evidence) « bascorg.uks
Subject: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Qpeneon of S&nior Counsel - The Land o
which the Section 16AA Licence Relates

Hope this inds you well and looking forwvand 1o catching up this afternoon ref the matter below
Could | ask if it would be possible to move the meeting to 1630-17307] has another call which
1% due to conclude at 1630, so would mean she could join for the duration

I this s possible, pleass lat me know and I'lLamend the invite. Thanks!

Best wishes,



Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB

M: T: _ W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @Scotl andEstates
Follow us: . . . . .
Join today...

From: ||
Sent: Sunday, August 11, 2024 8:28 PM
Cc:_ _scottish|andandestates.co.uk>;_
_gillesgiemacandrew.co.uk;_ (Scotland) _basc.org.uk>;-
B ot T cvicence) I o2sc o uk>

Subject: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Opinion of Senior Counsel - The Land to
which the Section 16AA Licence Relates

Thanks [}

| have cross-checked availability with -on receipt of- below email. 1600 on 14 Aug
would appear to work for all parties so have sent a MS Teams invite to that effect. may be
able to join for some of the discussion pending conclusion of an earlier meeting.

With best wishes,

Scottish Land & Estates
Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB

M: T: _ W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @Scotl andEstates
Follow us: . . . . .
Join today...

From: || (cvidence) N oasc.ore.uk>

Sent: Friday, August 9, 2024 3:30 PM

_scottishlandandestates.co.uk>

Cc:_ _scottish|andandestates.co.uk>;_




I @silespiemacandrew.co.uk; [ (Scotland) < 2sc.or.uk>; N

Subject: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Opinion of Senior Counsel - The Land to
which the Section 16AA Licence Relates

Hi All,

| can do the times suggested on the 14t August and any time in the morning on the 15t
August except between 11:15-11:45. | am out of the office on the 15t August.

Thank you.

Best,

erom: [ - - < <ot
Sent: Friday, August 9, 2024 3:15 PM

To:_ _scottishlandandestates.co.uk>

Cc:_ _scottish|andandestates.co.uk>;_
_giIIespiemacandreW.co.uk;_ (Evidence) _basc.org.uk>;
B scotland) | oasc.oc.vk>;
_nature.scot>;_ _nature.scot>

Subject: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Opinion of Senior Counsel - The Land to
which the Section 16AA Licence Relates

Hi [l

Apologies for the delay in responding to your email.

Would any of the following dates/times be suitable for yourself and_ to meet next
week?

14t Aug: 10:45-11:45 or 14:00 onwards
15" Aug: currently any time apart from 10:00 - 10:45

Kind regards,

NatureScot | Great Glen House, Leachkin Road, Inverness IV3 8NW | t:_
nature.scot | @nature scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

From:_ _scottishlandandestates.co.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, August 7, 2024 11:53 AM

To:_ _nature.scot>;_ _nature.scot>
Cc:_ _scottishIandandestates.co.uk>;_
_giIlespiemacandrew.co.uk;_ (Evidence) _basc.org.uk>;

_ (Scotland) _basc.org.uk>



Subject: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Opinion of Senior Counsel - The Land to
which the Section 16AA Licence Relates

Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Intended for Subject Holders Only.

Morning Both,

Hope this finds you well. | just wanted to drop you a line to ask if you have had the opportunity
to consider the below?

Depending on how far you have got, it may be worth our while scheduling a call to discuss -
perhaps next week?

Let us know your thoughts when you can.

Best wishes,

Scottish Land & Estates

Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB
M: | T: BB\ : scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @Scotl andEstates

Follow us:

Join today...

Sent: Friday, August 2, 2024 11:37 AM

To:_ _scottish|andandestates.co.uk>;_
Y 2t c.scot>; Francesca Osowska <ceo@nature scot>

Cc:_ _scottish|andandestates.co.uk>;_
_giIlesgiemacandrew.co.uk;_ (Evidence) _basc.org.uk>;
_ (Scotland) _basc.org.uk>

Subject: Re: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Opinion of Senior Counsel - The Land to
which the Section 16AA Licence Relates

Thanks for this and to acknowledge receipt. We will of course consider and get back to
you.
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Cautsonl This message was sent froam oulside NahresScol

Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Intendod for Subject Holdars Oniy.
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

seoltiah Land & Estalees

Etuart Howse, Eslonills Business Park. Muoesselbwnreh EH=1 7FB

W L

doin today...



Sent: Wednesday, August 14, 2024 5:10 PM

seottishlandandestates.co.uk>:
reatre, seots: ﬂ}-
scottishlandandestates.co.uks>:
. [Scotland) «Jﬂ.uh :-,-

nature.scol>

Subject: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Opinion of Senior Counsel - The Land to
which the Section 16AA Licence Relates

-

Many thanks to you all for taking the time for the helpful and constructive chat this afternoon.

From a quick look at calendars 10:00 - 10:30 or 12:00 to 12:30 look like possibilities. I'm aware

that wea may prefar longer than hatf an hour 50 | will look to ses if | can stretch aeither of thase
slots.

| hope this helps and will wait to hear back to whether or not these times suit.

Many thanks,

From: || B ottt andandestates.co.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, August 14, 2004 4:58 B

T-=-— oot
Cc: scottishlandandestates co.uk>;
e.:_ll_tmin::.r!uwnrlrc' W L0k (Scotland) < basc.org. mc,.r-

nakure.soot>; [Evidence) basc.orguk>; .

Subject: RE: Restricted, Canfidential & Ls.'[,ull',' Privileged - Opinton of Senior Counsel - The Land to
which the Section 1644 Licence Helates

nature.scof>

With thanks for your time this afternocon — greatly appreciated.

Il could ask you to share your aeailability for Friday 23 August we will consult intemally and
revert with a suitable time - hope that's QK.

As discussed, SLE is dus to have a mesting with some key members at 1700 on Monday 19



August via M5 Teams. [f it would be possible for a representative from NatureScot to attend

than that would be greatly appreciated.

Bast wishas,

O DO Y,

Sant: Wednesday, August 14, 2024 1:15 PM

T-='_ N oo I

scoftishiandandestabes couks;
gillespiemacandriw.couk [Scotland) < basc.org.uk -,;-

nature scob>; [Evidence) basc ’=rE-ul=.'e..
nature.scot>; nature.scoi=

Subjact: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Opimeon of Senior Counsel - The Land Lo

which the Section 1684 Licence Relates

o problem [ - thanks for confirming. JJ will join at 1630 unless her previous call finishes

early.

LFL L Lk T withers:

i
H B H B N

Joriil |||II:||:|'



Sant: Wednesday, August 14, 2024 1:14 PM

To: [ T - i:hocandestates.couk; [

nafure soog

soottishiandandestates couks;
gillespiemacandrew.co.uk; (Scotland) basc.org.uk>;
nature.scob>; [E'n.'ll:Il:'F'EF':I basc.org.uk> .

Subject: RE: Restricted, ':-L:-IIfII11'I'I1I|1| .". L-: [-:-I"'.' Privileged - Opinbon of Senbor Counsel - The Land to
which the Section 16AA Licence Relates

hard Tinash at 0 would prefer to shick with the timeng we have planned i

L | Scottand’s Nalfure Agency | Busdheann Nadar ng h-Alba

Prondamns: hr_-,."hlm | If yous receive this email late at night or early in the maming it means | am working flexdibly but

please do not feel that you have 1o pick this up outside of your can noomal working hours.

From: | - - tishiandandestates.co.uk>

Sant: 14 August 2024 12:26

To: B N o

scottishlandandestabes.couks;

gillespiemacandrew.co.uk: (Scotland) < basc.org.uk>; [N
nalure.scol; (Evidence) « basc.org.uk:
Subject: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Qpineon of Senior Counsel - The Land bo

which the Section 1684 Licence Helates

Hope this finds you well and looking fonwvard 1o catching up this aftemoon rel the matter below.

Could | ask if it would be possible to move the mesting 1o ‘Iﬁﬂ-l}-i?ﬁﬂ'?. has another call which
15 due to conclude at 1630, so would mean she could join for the duration.

Ifthis 15 possible, pleass let me know and I'lLamend the inite. Thanks!

Bestwishes,



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
would appear to work for all parties so have sent a MS Teams invite to that effect.. may be
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
I\/I:_ -- W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @ScotLandEstates

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



—— paa
Scottish Land & Estates
Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB

I\/I:_ T:_ W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @ScotLandEstates

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom
they are addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the system manager or the sender.
Please note that for business purposes, outgoing and incoming emails from and to NatureScot may be monitored.

Tha am post-dealain seo agus fiosrachadh sam bith na chois diomhair agus airson an neach no buidheann ainmichte a- mhain.
Mas e gun d’ fhuair sibh am post-dealain seo le mearachd, cuiribh fios dhan manaidsear-siostaim no neach- sgriobhaidh.
Thoiribh an aire airson adhbharan gnothaich, ‘s docha gun téid suil a chumail air puist-dealain a’ tighinn a-steach agus a’ dol a-
mach bho NadarAlba.

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
Thoiribh an aire airson adhbharan gnothaich, ‘s docha gun teid suil a chumail air puist-dealain a’ tighinn a-steach agus a’ dol a-
mach bho NadarAlba.

Disclaimer: This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended
solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have
received this emailin error please notify me at_basc.org.uk then delete it.
BASC may monitor email traffic. By replying to this e-mail you consent to BASC
monitoring the content of any email you send or receive from BASC. Any views expressed
in this message are those of the individual sender, except where the sender specifies with
authority, states them to be the views of the British Association for Shooting and
Conservation. BASC can confirm that this email message and any attachments have
been scanned for the presence of computer viruses but recommends that you make your
own virus checks. Registered Society No.: 28488R. Registered Office: Marford Mill,
Rossett, Wrexham, LL12 OHL. BASC is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority ref 311937.

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



Fan

Recommanded i Conwmercial Liigadon, Medva & Enledainment. Professionad
Moghaencs, Spont and Laagadn

Sent: Friday, August 16, 2024 4:37 PM

Subject: Re: MatureScor

vear [

Thanks for your email 1t's abways halpful to get something down in wnting and "test’ that.
I'm travelling back to Edinburgh this weekend but will look at in the early part of next week.

Kind regards

Sent from my phone - please excuse typos and informal language

_@-ﬁi‘ilﬂ'm&ﬂ YoCates. com

WA, SO MA VD Cales. COm

On 16 Aug 2024, at 1 ?:25-_@tla[mn1au[u¢_mmuh} wrote:



Dear-

Thanks for your email. It’s always helpful to get something down in writing and ‘test’ that.
I’m travelling back to Edinburgh this weekend but will look at in the early part of next week.

Kind regards

Sent from my phone - please excuse typos and informal language.

_axiomadvocates.com

www.axiomadvocates.com

Gteriing tearn: I

On 16 Aug 2024, at 17:29,_ _harpermacleod.co.uk> wrote:




I"ve promised to get back to SLAE tomorrow morning ahead of the meating on Friday 5o would be
El}l:ll:l to heve 8 steer on how 10 prasant it.

Arg you around for a guick call at ;45 Tomamow moming?

Thanks,

Sents Wedneoday seprember 11, 2024 4:50 P

Sublect: F'W- NatureScot

Sent: Wednecsday, September 11, 2024 4:53 PFM

N O

Subject: Re: MatureScot

Daar




_d"il'}’!"i‘:'r'lli-ﬂ!'.':..:{'!'.l

A BT A ChDCI T8, COm

Clocing resr

From: | - oo omacleod co k>

Sent: 11 September 2024 15:04

To: [ 0 ooces o

Subject: RE: MatureSeon

Th.anha.-

PARTHER

THEPLUITR HE 504 1970w

Recomymanded in Commercid Liigation, Medka & Enfentammeant. Professioog
Negpipence, Spor and Lifigaton

Sent: '|'.|'|'|:|'-'|'-'..|:|.|rb|l_ September 11, A4 250 P

To: [ - ¢ acleod co.uk

Subject: Re: NatureScol

I:lu-u.r-

Thas i3 on mey o do sl | should be able fo gel back to you laler loday or ioencerow maming
Kird regands



_.l-:.-l.l ....:.-I.". Il.l ... ..-:I i

AR A SO DC R 5, oA

Sent: 11 September 2024 14:30

To: [ T oo con>
Subject: RE: MatureScot
-

| & just fiollowing wp on my emaill below. The clients have their rescheduled mesting with SLE on Friday
raiming and | said | would check with you to see if you have capacity 1o provide comment on this bafore than.

Kind regards,

tror I

Sent: Friday, September &, 2024 11:39 AM

Subject: RE: NatureSoot




Stnt. Tuesday, August 27, 2024 3:56 P

‘:'-ubjut: He: NatureSoot

Kird rogards

WYY O R W R s T

cleriing v

F m-r'ﬁ.'- : -! larpermaclend. oo,
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Havice on Condilion 17 Seplember 2004, padf
Proporsed Amendiment - Secion LGAA Licence D Cordnn, ol x

ImjEartame: L
.

Would be good to discuss. | will try and give you a callin a moment.

Thamks,

me:_ -_m:cultishﬁa ndandestates.co.uk>

Sant: Tuesday, Seplember 17, 2024 2:30 PM
To: nature. scol>;

nature. scol>:

nature scot>; nature. scol>

scottishla nr:anu.".lesi abes.couks:
gIIE-L spremacandrew.co.uk; basc.org. uh;-

b.'-!'\.l: org. uk'.-
5uhj:m:=t. HEitlIEtH‘]I Confidential & Legally Privileged - Draft Condition - Section 1644 Licences

Importance: High

Caumon! This massage was sanl from oulside NaiireSool

Restricted. Confidential & Legally Privileged - Intended for Subjact Holders Only
Dear All,

I attach the opinion of our senior c:nunsel._ in the matter regarding the draft
section 16AA licence condition which you kindly shared with us on 12 September,

Clearly this opinion puts us in a8 somewhat difficult position, and we are unable to accept the
draft condition in its surrant form., However, in the spirt of finding consensus, | attach the draft
condition with amendments by way of tracked changes which we believe will strike the right
balance between safeguarding our members’ legal interests and delivering the policy objective
you have described, These amendmeants have been drafted in conjunction with senior counsel.

We look forward to having & fuller discussion on this tomomow aftermoon, In the meantime, we
would be grateful if you could give our legal opinion and proposed amendments due
consideration. We would also appreciate an update tomormow on your commitment to update
your guidance on the area of land to which the cence is to relate — noting your intent to update
guidance by 30 September with modifications taking place shortly thereafter.



With best wishes,

Note - this email reflects the view of SLE and my BASC colleagues (copied) will confirm their
view forthwith as soon as they have had the opportunity to confer internally.

Scottish Land & Estates
Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB

I\/I:_ T:_ -W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @Scotl andEstates

Follow us:

Join today...
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o —

1 EEOEETEEY 0 B 0 |
Subject: Er; Brdricied, Conficentisl & Legaly Privileged - Dralt Coraiition - Section LA Lioenoes
Date: 17 September P24 16:24:40
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Caulonl This massage was senl Inom oulside NauraSool

Dear All
Further to my last, I can confirm the above email also reflects the position of BASC.

Best wishes,

i i ] & F i
sl Laendl & Esinli

e 1 A
SRR reh EHz21 7FB

Stuart House, | iill= Business Park
“_ I=—"""’ ottishlandandestnies. k Twiatter: @500t LandE

Frum:_ _E!'dllii"al‘llu!ll‘l-liﬁl‘ldﬂ'a!dlIZ“:. co.uk>

Sent: Tuesday, September 17, 2024 2:30 PM
nature.scot: |

nature. scot

c: [ - i< andandestates.co.uk; |GG
-ﬁtlteapit-\rnat'arlder-::n.uI-: _].:i||!-'!-r|'.?ii—"l'l'!|:-]|::d1llﬂl+"w.{1}.’|Jk'-.
_ _h.—]*u'.urg.ulcm._ [Evidenice)

E  [EESEEnE

Subject: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Draft Condition - Section 16AA Licences

Bestricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Intended for Subject Holders Only
Craar All,

| attach the opinion of our Senior 1:uunsi:l._. in the matter regarding the draft
saction 16AA licence condiion which you Kindly shared swith us on 12 Seplembeaer,

Cleary thas opanion puts us in a somewhat difficult position, and we are unabile o accept the
draft condition in 15 current form. However, in the spirt of finding consensus, | attach the draft
condition with amendments by way of racked changes which we believe will strike the right
balance between saleguarding our members” legal interests and delvenng the policy objective
you have described. These amendments have been drafted in conjunction with senior counseal.



We look forward to having a fuller discussion on this tomorrow afternoon. In the meantime, we
would be grateful if you could give our legal opinion and proposed amendments due
consideration. We would also appreciate an update tomorrow on your commitment to update
your guidance on the area of land to which the licence is to relate — noting your intent to update
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

I\/I:_ T:_ W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @Scotl andEstates

Follow us:

Join today...



mummmmwummmmmmumm
imnoer sactions 1. 5ov 6 of the 7367 Act and whéch:

1.1 invadves any of [he Bpecrs mentioned at 1.2 of this conditen; and

1.1.2  takas place on land othar than that o which this Sconce robanes bt sehich [s oened o

ool by fhe feenos baidoid

~—~'i k‘ﬁh_—n:mt
| prnie SN

1.2 The specias refevrod to ot 1.1. 1 of this condition ane as follows:

[Raptons oic. |
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Thﬂywhrﬂ' this with us. We have discussed with our own exdernal advisers, Harper Macleod
LLP, and

Wea balieve that the condition as drafted is lawhul, although we of course take account of what
.u}uhtisupinhlurdtmmhnmwalladﬁmdnmﬁm unpradictability of judicial reviev. are in
any avent keen to find a solution that works for all stakeholders, provided that it meets the legislative intent
of addrassing the issues of raptor persecution in the vicinity of grouse moors.

With that in mind, and taking account of your suggested changes, we have revised the condition as
follows:

1. The feence holder shall not do any act, and shall take reasonable steps to ensure thal no person
withirt their employment or corirol shall do any act, for the purposes of or in relalion o Bhe
managemeant of e land fo which this fcence niates which would be an offence Lnder seclions
I, §or & of the 1981 Act and which:

1.1.1  wvolves any of the species menfioned al 1.2 of this condition; and

1.1.2 (lakes place on fand other fhan that to which this icence relales.

2. The species referred fo af 1,1, 1 of thiz comdition are a= folfows:

Horey Buzzard (Permis apivorus), Red Kife (Mivus mifvus), White-fafted Eagle (Halaeetus aibicita),
Eurasian Marah Harmer (Circus asruginozus), Hen Harrier (Cireus cyansus), Marthern Goshawk (Accipiter
gentilis), Eurasian Sparowhawk (Accipiler nisus), Common Buzzard (Biuteo buteo), Golden Eagle

{Aguila chrysasins), Osprey (Pandion halssfuz), Common Kestrel (Faleo tinnuneulus), Merin (Fales
columbarius), Eurasian Hobby (Falco Subbuteo), Peregrine Falcon (Faico peregrinus), Rough-legged
burzard (Buleo lagopus), Barn Owd (Tyto alba), Little Owl [Athene Noctua), Tawny Owl (Sinx aluco), Long-
eared Owl [Asio clus), Shorf-eared Owl (Asio fammeus), Snowy Owl [Nyciea scandiaca), Raven [Corvus
corax)

Tha change at 1.1, is intended to address. “guarantes” point n respect of those in the
emphoy or control of the licence haolder. We do not consider that concern arises in relation to the licence
holder's own acts.

We have not included the change you have suggested at 1.1.2 because that would leave it cpentoa
licence holder to ach or cause others to act contrary to those sections of the 1981 Act on land which they
de ot orani of occupy and for the purposes of managing the land to which the Brence relales, without
breaching the conditions of the Beenca. For example, the killing of an sagle by such parsons on land
adjacent to but not in common cwnership with the grouse moor, would not be caught.

WWe do not think that should causs concem 1o licence holders because any such act which is not for the
purposes of or in refation to the management of the grouse moor would not be a breach of the condition.

We look forward to discussing this when we meet later today.
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Caulsanl This massage was sani Inom oulside NaburaSool

Bestricted. Confidential & Legally Privileged - Intended for Sublect Holders Only

Many thanks for your email which we acknowledge and look forward 1o discussing later this
aftermoon.,

In relation to 1.1.2, we did provide a secondary option in the comment margin which would not
prejudice your ability to act in the circumstance you describe. | have reflected this amendment
in red below for ease of reference and outlined the rationale below,

1. The ffcence holder shall nof do any act, and shall fake reasonable steps to enzure thad no perzon
within fheir employment or controd shall do any act, for the purposes of ar in relalion to the
management of the land fo which this icence relafes which would be an offence under sechions
I, 5or 6 of the 1981 Act and which;

1.1.1  invalves any of the species menlioned at 1,2 of this condition; and

1.1.2 iakes place on land other than that o which this icence relafes but the management of
which is conirofled by the fcence halder

2. The speces referred fo af 1.1.1 of this condidron are a5 folfows.

Horey Buzzard (Permis apivorus), Red Kife (Wivus mifves), Whife<taned Eagle (Halaselus aibiciia),
Eurasian Marsh Harmer (Circus aeruginosus), Hen Hamier [Cireus cyanewus), Morthern Goshawk (Accipiter
gentilis), Eurasian Spamowhawk (Accipder nisus), Common Buzzard (Buleo buteg), Golden Eagle

{Aguila chrysaefos], Osprey (Fandion haliaefus), Common Kestrel (Falco tinnuneulus], Merfin (Faleo
columbanius). Eurasan Hobby (Falco Subbules), Paregrine Falcon (Falco peregrinus), Rough-legged
buzzard (Buteo lagopus), Bam Owd (Tyfo alba), Litte O (Athene Noctua), Tawny Owl (Sinx aluca). Lomg-
gared Ol (Asio ofus), Shorf-earsd Owl (Asio fammeus), Snowy Owl (Nyclea scandiaca), Raven (Convus

Grateful if this point




could be given consideration ahead of our call at 1630.

| also note your reference to the legislative intent: “addressing the issues of raptor persecution
in the vicinity of grouse moors”. This being the case, we were surprised to see the Raven
(Corvus corax) referend in the species at 1.2 given it is clearly a corvid and not a raptor. It would
be useful to hear the rationale for this when we speak at 1630 and, in particular, whether
consideration might be given to removing it from the species list.

Best wishes,

Scottish Land & Estates
Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB
I\/I:_ -- W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @ScotlLandEstates

Follow us:

Join today...

From: | B -t < scot>

Sent: 20 September 2024 14:26

To: | <ot tish'andandestates.co.uk>; || EG_—_
Y -t scot>

Cc:_ _scottishIandandestates.co.uk>;_

B <spiemacandrew.co.uk; | (Scotland) < 2sc.orz. v |
- (Evidence) _basc.org.uk>

Subject: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Draft Condition - Section 16AA Licences

Dear -

Thank you for sharing this with us. We have discussed with our own external advisers, Harper Macleod

LLP, and

We believe that the condition as drafted is lawful, although we of course take account of what

. says in his opinion and have been well advised as to the unpredictability of judicial review. We are in
any event keen to find a solution that works for all stakeholders, provided that it meets the legislative intent
of addressing the issues of raptor persecution in the vicinity of grouse moors.

With that in mind, and taking account of your suggested changes, we have revised the condition as
follows:

1. The licence holder shall not do any act, and shall take reasonable steps to ensure that no person
within their employment or control shall do any act, for the purposes of or in relation to the
management of the land to which this licence relates which would be an offence under sections



1, 5 or 6 of the 1981 Act and which:
1.1.1 involves any of the species mentioned at 1.2 of this condition; and

1.1.2 takes place on land other than that to which this licence relates.

2. The species referred to at 1.1.1 of this condition are as follows:

Honey Buzzard (Pernis apivorus), Red Kite (Milvus milvus), White-tailed Eagle (Haliaeetus albicilla),
Eurasian Marsh Harrier (Circus aeruginosus), Hen Harrier (Circus cyaneus), Northern Goshawk (Accipiter
gentilis), Eurasian Sparrowhawk (Accipiter nisus), Common Buzzard (Buteo buteo), Golden Eagle

(Aquila chrysaetos), Osprey (Pandion haliaetus), Common Kestrel (Falco tinnunculus), Merlin (Falco
columbarius), Eurasian Hobby (Falco Subbuteo), Peregrine Falcon (Falco peregrinus), Rough-legged
buzzard (Buteo lagopus), Barn Owl (Tyto alba), Little Owl (Athene Noctua), Tawny Owl (Strix aluco), Long-
eared Owl (Asio otus), Short-eared Owl (Asio flammeus), Snowy Owl (Nyctea scandiaca), Raven (Corvus
corax)

The change at 1.1, is intended to address || ll ‘ovarantee” point in respect of those in the
employ or control of the licence holder. We do not consider that concern arises in relation to the licence
holder’s own acts.

We have not included the change you have suggested at 1.1.2 because that would leave it open to a
licence holder to act or cause others to act contrary to those sections of the 1981 Act on land which they
do not own or occupy and for the purposes of managing the land to which the licence relates, without
breaching the conditions of the licence. For example, the killing of an eagle by such persons on land
adjacent to but not in common ownership with the grouse moor, would not be caught.

We do not think that should cause concern to licence holders because any such act which is not for the
purposes of or in relation to the management of the grouse moor would not be a breach of the condition.

We look forward to discussing this when we meet later today.

Kind Regards

From:_ _scottishlandandestates.co.uk>

Sent: Tuesday, September 17, 2024 2:30 PM

c: I _scotUshIandandestates.co.uk>,_
_Qillesoiemacandrevv.co.uk:_ (Scotland) _basc.org.uk>;-
- (Evidence) _basc.org.uk>

Subject: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Draft Condition - Section 16AA Licences
Importance: High

Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Intended for Subject Holders Only

Dear All,

| attach the opinion of our senior counsel,_, in the matter regarding the draft
section 16AA licence condition which you kindly shared with us on 12 September.

Clearly this opinion puts us in a somewhat difficult position, and we are unable to accept the



draft condition in its current form. However, in the spirit of finding consensus, | attach the draft
condition with amendments by way of tracked changes which we believe will strike the right

balance between safeguarding our members’ legal interests and delivering the policy objective
you have described. These amendments have been drafted in conjunction with senior counsel.

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

Note —this email reflects the view of SLE and my BASC colleagues (copied) will confirm their
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
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Had a brief discussion with other colleagues on this and we think the proposed course of action
would be preferable - provided it is permissible fram the MatureScot perspactive.

= |ssue wrtitten notice of the intent to modify licences. The modification will make clear that
the “land on which certain binds [red grouse] may be taken or killed” will become the land
to which the licence is to ralate through modification.
= The written notice will also make clear the following points:
#= Licenca holders will have 14 days to resubmit maps if the *land an which red grouse
may be taken or killed” is not accurately specified.
= [f previously submitted maps do accurately reflect *land on which red grouse may ba
taken or killed”, no action will be required. In practice this will mean that the
specified area shaded in blue will bacome tha land to which the licence s to relate, or
—where a blua shaded area is not reflected - the specified boundary will become the
land to which the licence is to relata.
= Maodify licences with the following wording after 14 days:; “The land on which cerfain birds
[red grouse] may be taken or killed is the area of land to which this licence relates far the
purposas of section 1644(6)(a)fiil of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981."

Shout if you need any further input from us and look foravard to catehing up next week,

Best wishes,

baoitteah Lan: h stales
Sruart Himes sianills Bosmeks Park, Musselburgh EHz 7PB

Al: _ _ Wi seottishlondandestates, oo ok Twitter: @ SootlandEstate:
H B B B B

' 1

Join today.,



From: _ _scottishlanda ndestates.co.uk>

Sent: 27 September 2024 08:51

Subject: Re: In confidence - wording as discussed

Thanks- - yes, 1000 works for me.

Scottish Land & Estates
Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB

I\/I:_ T:_ W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @ScotLandEstates

Sent: Friday, September 27, 2024 8:49:46 AM

To:_ _scottishlandandestates.co.u|<>

Subject: RE: In confidence - wording as discussed

Many thanks- How would 10am suit you for a chat?

Thanks,

From:_ _scottishlandandestates.co.u|<>

Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2024 10:32 PM

Subject: RE: In confidence - wording as discussed

5 |

Thanks for this and apologies for the delay in coming back to you —1 am not long in the door
from parliament.

| understand the following wording is used on valid section 16AA licences: “The Landholding is
the area of land to which this licence relates for the purposes of section 16AA(6)(a)(ii) of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1987.” I’m also aware that your current guidance and licence
application currently refers to the blue shaded area as: “areas over which you have the right to
kill or take grouse™.

However, the “area[s] over which you have the right to kill or take grouse” is not a phrase that is
used or recognised by the 2024 Act. Technically a landowner or occupier holds the right to kill
or take grouse over any land where they hold the sporting rights — irrespective of whether grouse
are actually present on said land or not.



The phrase used in the Actis “land on which certain birds [red grouse] may be taken or killed”.
As we now understand, it is for the applicant to specify said area of land on which red grouse
may be taken or killed as the area of land to which the licence is to relate.

The salient point here is that the “area[s] over which you have the right to kill or take grouse”
(peryour current guidance) and the “land on which certain birds may be taken or killed” (per the
Act) are, technically, two different things. You have asked licence holders to apply for licences
on the premise of the former — not the latter.

With this in mind, NatureScot will need to cease using the term “areafs] over which you have
the right to kill or take grouse”. Given this phrase was the premise on which licence holders
were erroneously asked to produce maps, you ideally need to ask licence holders to resubmit
maps which specify:

e The land on which certain birds may be taken or killed, per 16AA(4)(c), in blue;
e The landholding boundary, per 16AA(4)(d), in red.

The wording on all section 16AA licences should then read: “The land on which certain birds
[red grouse] may be taken or killed is the area of land to which this licence relates for the
purposes of section 16AA(6)(a)(ii) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.”

You might be able to get away with simply modifying licences to read what I’ve set out in the
above paragraph without requiring resubmission of maps, but technically people applied
having shaded “areas over which you have the right to kill or take grouse” in blue - which is not
strictly the same as “the land on which certain birds may be taken or killed”. To illustrate this,
some estates decided to not specify the former in blue at all - principally because they hold the
right to kill/take grouse over the full extent of the landholding, and felt there was no need to do
so. Ifinitial guidance stipulated that “the land on which red grouse may be taken or killed” be
specified, some may have specified differently...

| appreciate this is not what you will want to hear and manifestly more complicated than we all
envisaged. However, given what your current guidance says versus what we now understand, |
think all licence holders will need to resubmit maps clear in the knowledge of what they are
being asked to specify.

I’m around all day tomorrow except 1115-1200 and 1430-1600. Perhaps we should chat
through by teams? | am genuinely happy to help with this as much as | can and appreciate this
is both extremely complicated and onerous.

Best wishes,

Scottish Land & Estates
Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB
™: -- W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @ScotLandEstates

Follow us:



Join today...

Sent: 26 September 2024 16:52

To:_ _scottishlandandestates.co.u|<>

Subject: In confidence - wording as discussed

il
Thanks for calling me back. Proposed, draft explanation as discussed:

The area of land to which this licence relates for the purposes of section 16AA(6)(a)(ii) of the
1981 Act is the area specified by the licence holder on the map submitted with the licence
application as the area on which the licence holder has the right to kill or take red grouse

If you can let me know any comments that would be appreciated.

Thanks,

| I
Naturescot | |

NatureScot |
o

| @nature_scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

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



See below from- at SLE.

.9
NatureScot |Great Glen House | Inverness | V3 8NW | 0146

nature.scot | @nature_scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

From:_ _scottishIandandestates.co.uk>

Sent: Thursday, September 12, 2024 9:57 AM

To: [ B =< scot>; [ B e scot>;
_scottishlandandestates.co.uk>;_ (Scotland) _basc.org.uk>;
_ (Evidence) _basc.org.uk>

Subject: Re: Section 16AA Licence Area & Condition

Many thanks for sending this over. We will consider the detail of the licence condition

and revert back to you with our view. Sharing it in advance is appreciated so thank you
for that.

Regarding the land to which the licence relates, | note your intention "to consult on a slightly
modified version of the scheme, in terms of which the perimeter of the area of land to which the licence
relates would be reduced to only the area on which the applicant intends to undertake licenced
activities".

| think we have been relatively clear that we need to see this matter resolved no later
than 15 September so we can protect the legal interests of our members. The 2024 Act
is absolutely clear on what is meant by the land to which the licence relates (per senior
counsel's opinion), so | am not clear on why wider consultation on this issue (if that is
what is intended) is necessary? This is a point of legal clarification and not a
consultative matter.

Please could you confirm if licences will be modified (to ensure the land to which the
licence relates is the area the applicant has specified as being the area over which

certain birds are taken or killed) by 15 September.

Best wishes,

——
Scottish Land & Estates
Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB



M:_ T:_ W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @ScotLandEstates

From:_ _nature.scot>
Sent: Thursday, September 12, 2024 9:06 AM
To:_ _scottishIandandestates.co.uk>;_
Y e scot>; [ B - e scot>
Y ot tishlandandestates.co.uk>; || (Scotiand)

Y oasc.ore.uk>; | 5vidence) I basc.ors.uk>

Subject: RE: Section 16AA Licence Area & Condition

Dear All,

We have received feedback from senior counsel and have summarised the proposals below. In drafting
these we have carefully considered feedback from stakeholders on the current scheme, particularly the
concerns expressed around the definition of the area of land to which the licence relates. In the hope of
alleviating those concerns, NatureScot intends to consult on a slightly modified version of the scheme, in
terms of which the perimeter of the area of land to which the licence relates would be reduced to only the
area on which the applicant intends to undertake licenced activities.

The modified scheme will also propose a licence condition along the following lines:

1 Conditions relating to land management

1.1 The licence holder shall ensure that nothing is done for the purposes of or in relation to the
management of the land to which this licence relates, which would be an offence under
sections 1, 5 or 6 of the 1981 Act and which:

1.1.1  involves any of the species mentioned at 1.2 of this condition; and

1.1.2 takes place on land other than that to which this licence relates.

1.2 The species referred to at 1.1.1 of this condition are as follows:
[Raptors etc.]

We will be consulting more widely on these modifications but would welcome any comments you may
have at this stage. We will have an opportunity to discuss this and hear your views at
tomorrow’s meeting.

Many thanks,

From:_ _nature.scot>

Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2024 4:56 PM

To:_ _scottishlandandestates.co.uk>;_
Y oo ; T B e scot>
Y <cottishlandandestates.co.uk>; || (Scotland) <\ 2asc.ore.uk>;




A ———

Subject: RE: Section 16AA Licence Area & Condition

Hello [l

Many thanks for this update and explanation of your position and for the quick catch up
earlier. As discussed, we are awaiting feedback from senior counsel and we will update you
tomorrow morning as soon as we can.

Many thanks,

From:_ _scottishlandandestates.co.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2024 1:18 PM

nature.scot>

_ _scottishIandandestates.co.uk>;- (Scotland)
< cc: . I (ciconce) - 2.

Subject: Section 16AA Licence Area & Condition

ear N < I

| hope this finds you well. At our last catch-up meeting on the matter regarding the land

to which the licence relates, you kindly offered to give us advanced sight of the
proposed new condition so that we might consult senior counsel and form a view. We
have been working on the understanding that the licence condition and the modification
to existing licences to amend the land to which the licence relates would be
implemented simultaneously, although please do advise if that is in fact not the case.

We also made clear following that discussion that we required the matter to be resolved
no later than 15 September due to the timescales associated with judicial review, but
on the understanding that litigation would likely not be required provided the matter is
voluntarily resolved.

Assuming the intent is to modify licences and bring about both of the above changes,
this does not leave us with much time to take a view on the licence condition and I'd ask
for an update at your earliest convenience please. We would also be grateful if you
could set out the timescale with regards to making the changes to the land to which the
licence relates, and in particular whether this change will be made by 15 September.

Looking forward to hearing from you.

With best wishes,



———
Scottish Land & Estates
Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB

I\/I:_ T:_ W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @ScotLandEstates

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to
whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the system manager or the sender.
Please note that for business purposes, outgoing and incoming emails from and to NatureScot may be monitored.
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Please be aware of cyber-crime.

We will not change bank account details during the course of a transaction. If you are due to transfer money to Harper Macleod and
have received an e-mail with sort code and account details you should call your Harper Macleod contact to corroborate these details.
Please use a phone number from our website or terms of engagement letter and not one from the same e-mail as contains the bank
account details. For other advice on protection from cyber-crime, see the National Cyber Security Centre website.

Please consider the environment before printing this email

Harper Macleod LLP is limited liability partnership regulated by the Law Society of Scotland, whose registered number is S0300331 and
whose registered office is at The Cadoro, 45 Gordon Street, Glasgow G1 3PE, United Kingdom. Information, conclusions, opinions
and/or advice contained in this message (or its attachments) are not given or endorsed by Harper Macleod LLP, unless originating from
Harper Macleod LLP and transmitted in the normal course of their business. This message (and its attachments) is confidential and
subject to legal professional privilege, and may be exempt from disclosure requirements arising under applicable law. Use, disclosure,
transmission, copying or alteration of this message (or its attachments) is strictly forbidden unless expressly authorised by Harper
Macleod LLP. This message (and its attachments) are intended for the named addressee only. If you have received this message (or its
attachments) in error please destroy it and all copies of it and notify the sender immediately. This message (and its attachments) have
been scanned for viruses prior to leaving the Harper Macleod LLP network, however Harper Macleod LLP does not guarantee that this
message (or its attachments) will be free from viruses, malicious code or such like. Harper Macleod LLP may process (including monitor)
emails sent or received by it to enable it to comply with applicable law, operate its business, and/or to protect it or its clients.



[

ce:
Sulyject: - Saerhon 1 Licenoe fgea &

Dharle: 12 Sephember 2004 14:51 K

Following on from our quick chat just now and to keep everyone else in the loop here is a
response to your points below. As you know, NatureScot has taken account of the opinion
of senior counsel instructed by SLE as part of our consideration of stakeholder concerns.
Whilst wea have not concedad that the definition of the "land to which the licence ralates”
used in the current scheme is unlawful we are proposing an amendment to simplify the
procaess for applicants, by removing the need for them to identify two or more areas of
land in their application

The proposed change will involve modifying existing licences so that the area of land to
which the licence relates shall be the area upon which the licenced activity is to take place,
We also propose to add the condition outlined below added to the licence conditions. As
we understand it, this will satisfy concerns around the definition of the area of land to
which the licence relates

We will not be ina position to implement these changes by 15 September, but our

intention is for the modifications to take effect as soon as possible,

| understand from speaking to vou that the significance of 15th September is to ensure that
all possible scenarios are covered with respect to the beginning of the 3 months within
which a challenge can be made. However, we would welcome further clarity to ensure
common understanding. As Section 16A4 did not come into force until 22 July 2024, our

understanding is that the challenges 5LE has to the current scheme can be made within 3

manths, which would take us to 21 October 2024,

Kind Regards,

From: srottishlandandestates.co.uk=
Sent: Thursday, September 12, 2024 9:57 AM

To. v so'; I S 5o

nature soot

I oot
R ;o \tishiandandestates.co.uks; (Scotland)
- ore- vk [ (cvidence) - ore v

Subject: Re: Section 16AA Licence Area & Condition




Caution] This massage was sent from outside NaturaSool

Many thanks for sending this over. We will consider the detail of the licence condition

and revert back to you with our view, Sharing it in advanca is appreciated 5o thank
you for that.

Regarding the land to which the licence relates, | note your intention “to consult on a
shightly modified wersion of the scheme, in terms of which the panmeter of the area of land to which
the licence relates would be reduced to anly the area an whech the applicant intends. bo undertake
licenced attvities”,

| think we have been relatively clear that we need to see this matter resolved no later
than 15 September so we can protect the legal interests of our members. The 2024
Act iz absolutely clear on what is meant by the land to which the licence relates (per
senior counsel's opinion), 50 | am not clear on why wider consultation on this issue (if
that is what is intended) is necessary? This is a point of legal clarification and not a
consultative matter.

Please could you confirm if licences will be modified (to ensure the land to which the
Licence relates iz the area the applicant has specified as being the area over which
certain birds are taken or killed) by 15 September.

Best wishes,

Stuart House, Eskmiills Business Park, Mussellur 1 7PR
."||:_ l':_ W scottishlandandestates coonk Twitters @ ScolLandEstate

Sent: Thursday, September 12, 2024 9:06 AM
ce: [ _uuuw [—
T andandestates co vk [T (Gootend)

Subject: RE: Section 1644 Licence Area & Condition

Dear All,



We have received feedback from senior counsel and have summarised the proposals below. In
drafting these we have carefully considered feedback from stakeholders on the current scheme,
particularly the concerns expressed around the definition of the area of land to which the licence
relates. In the hope of alleviating those concerns, NatureScot intends to consult on a slightly modified
version of the scheme, in terms of which the perimeter of the area of land to which the licence relates
would be reduced to only the area on which the applicant intends to undertake licenced activities.

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
_scottishIandandestates.co.uk>;_ (Scotland)

Y oasc.orc.uk>; [ (cvicence) S basc.ors.uk>

Subject: RE: Section 16AA Licence Area & Condition

Hello [l

Many thanks for this update and explanation of your position and for the quick catch up

earlier. As discussed, we are awaiting feedback from senior counsel and we will update
you tomorrow morning as soon as we can.

Many thanks,



-

Eent Wednesday, September 11, 2024 1:18 PM

To: I N -

-
c IR -
[ ————]
T S o) S

Subject: Section 168A Licence Area & Condition

B

| hope this finds you well. At our last catch-up meeting on the matter regarding the
land to which the licence relates, you kindly offered to give us advanced sight of the

proposed new condition 5o that we might consultl senior counsel and form a view.
We have been working on the understanding that the licence condition and the
modification to existing licences to amend the land to which the licence relates
would be implemented simultaneously, although please do advise if that is in fact
not the case,

We also made clear following that discussion that we required the matter to be
resolved no later than 15 September due 1o the timescales associated with judicial
review, but on the understanding that liigation would bkely not be required provided
the matter is voluntarily resolved.

Assuming the intent is to modify licences and bring about both of the above changes,
this does not leave us with much time to take a view on the licence condition and I'd
ask for an update at your earliest convenience please. We would also be grateful if
vou could set out the timescale with regards to making the changes to the land to
which the licence relates, and in particular whether this change will be made by 15
September.

Looking forward to hearing from you.

With best wishes,

Snoart Honse, Fabndlls Bosiness Park, Muos=alborel =1 7B
."ui:_ l:_"l'l.'.' cattizhlandandestates co.nk Twilter: @Scot LandEstates



From:

To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: Modification process
Date: 02 October 2024 09:04:00
Attachments: ~WRDO0000.jpg

Hil

Many thanks for your advice on this. As discussed on the phone I’ve edited the text further to
reflect the wording and meaning in the Act that itis up to the licence holder to ‘specify the area
of land to which the licence will relate’ and that this is area is the ‘land over which red grouse
may be killed or taken’:

“The area of land to which this licence relates for the purposes of section 16AA(6)(a)(ii) of the 1981 Act is
the area specified by the licence holder on the map submitted with the licence application as the area on
which red grouse may be taken or killed”

The steps we propose to take to make this modification are:

STEP 1: Proactively inform the licence holder that their licences will be modified

Send an email to all licence holders letting them know that their licences will be modified, the reasons for the
modification and when the modification will happen. Let them know that they can resubmit a map if they
would like to within a specified deadline (2/3 weeks). The email will explain that if previously submitted maps
accurately reflect “land on which red grouse may be taken or killed”, they will not be required to take any
action. However, if they believe that their map does not reflect this new definition they can submit a new
map. For the maps already submitted the area shaded in blue or the smaller area (where two boundaries
have been supplied) will become the land to which the licence is to relate.

STEP 2: Licences are modified and new maps (where submitted) added

Licensing officers will upload the new maps where they have been supplied by the licence
holder. The new condition and revised text re the area to which the licence relates are inserted
into all licences.

STEP 3: Send out notification that licence will be modified in 14 days and modified licence
Send an email to all licence holders letting them know that their licences have been modified
and that the modification will come into effect in 14 days. The guidance on the website will be
updated at this point. These modified licences will include the changed definition of the
boundaries.

STEP 4: Modification takes effect
Can you confirm that this approach fits the legislative requirements?

Many thanks,

From:- -harpermacleod.co.uk>

Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2024 2:19 PM

Subject: FW: Modification process



Coution! This massage was sanl from oulsade NatureSool

ind regands,

Fax

Sant: Wednesday, September 25, 2024 3:43 PM

Tl:r;- -_h.:ur[:-vr macleod.co.uk>

Subject: RE; Modification process
H
Thanks once again for these detalls. I'm hoping you can help with a couple of points for clanty;

« Maps - Description of which boundarny on & map will be the area to which the licence
relates

The proposed revised text explains that the relevant boundary 15 that which relatas to



To:

Ce:

Sulyject: i g Ecenoes o
Diale: 03 Doty A2 16 12200

Caulion] This message was sent from outside MatureScool,

Dear-

Thank you for informing us in advance about NatureScol's plans to modify the licences
issued under section 16AA of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (“the Act’) and for
confirming the intention o add a new condition to all licences.

The British Association for Shooting and Conservation (BASC) appreciates the effort to
revise the definition of “land to which the licence relates.” It is crucial that key aspects of
the licensing scheme align with, and accurately reflect, the provisions of the Act. This
modification should ensure that alignment moving forward.

We recognise NatureScot's plan to introduce a new licence condition and acknowledge
the changes made to the initial draft, which we previously deemed unlawful.

Whilst we reserve our position on this matter, we must highlight that it not in our power
to prevent or restrict our members from exploning any legal options available to them.
We lock forward to continued positive engagement as these changes are being

implemented.
Thank you once again for the advance notice regarding these modifications.

Best,

Sent: 30 September 2024 11:26
To:

scottishlandandestates.co.uk>;

scottishlandandestates co.uk=; [Scotland)

basc.org.uk>; (Evidences) basc.org.uk>

nature_ scol=;
nature, scot=; mature scols

Subject: Modifying licences to take or kill grouse
Deaar All,

Following on from discussions, please find below a statement on the intention to modify
1644 licences:

MNatureScot will modify the licences to take or kil grouse, issued under section 1644 of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1881, These moadifications will provide a new dafinition of
“land to which the licence relates”. The new definition will be the area of land which the
licence holder specifies as the area on which they will undertake the permitted activities
{as opposed to the wider landholding which is the position under the existing licences). At
the same time, a new condition will be infroduced to ansure that the key aim of legislation -



the reduction in raptor persecution in the vicinity of grouse moors — will remain at the core
of the licensing regime.

We will continue to discuss the timeframe of when this will be in place and can pick up on
this at our meeting on Wednesday morning.

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

Tha am post-dealain seo agus fiosrachadh sam bith na chois diomhair agus airson an neach no buidheann ainmichte a-
mhain. Mas e gun d’ fhuair sibh am post-dealain seo le mearachd, cuiribh fios dhan manaidsear-siostaim no neach-
sgriobhaidh.

Thoiribh an aire airson adhbharan gnothaich, ‘s docha gun téid suil a chumail air puist-dealain a’ tighinn a-steach agus a’
dol a- mach bho NadarAlba.

Disclaimer: This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended
solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have
received this email in error please notify me at basc.org.uk then delete it.
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
Conservation. BASC can confirm that this email message and any attachments have been
scanned for the presence of computer viruses but recommends that you make your own
virus checks. Registered Society No.: 28488R. Registered Office: Marford Mill, Rossett,
Wrexham, LL12 OHL. BASC is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority ref 311937,



From:
T

Subject;
Dale:
AlTachments:

Cautronl This message was sanl from oulside MNalweScol

Daar-

Thank you tor advanced notification of MaturaScot's intent to modify licences issuad under
saction 16AA of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 ("tha Act’), and for confinming
MatureScot's intantion to impose a new condition on all licences.

Scottish Land & Estates [SLE) welcomes the intention to modify licences by revising the
dafinition of what constitutes “land to which the licence relates”. It is important that critical
components of the licensing scheme accurately reflect the provisions of the Act, and this
madification ought to ansure that this will be the case going forward.

SLE acknowledges MatureScot's intention to introduce a new licence condition, We also
recognise and acknowledge the amendments that have besn made to the initial draft of the
condition which we considered unlawful. However, we resene our position on this matter and
we must be clear that we cannot bind cur members not to pursue any legal avenue open Lo
them when the condition is attached to licences.

SLE will continue to engage with you constructively as these changes are progressed. Thank
you again for advanced notification of these changes.,

Best wishes,

Seothish Lanicl & Eslbiles
Stuart Howse, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EHz2: $PB
M: 1 - Wi scottishlandandestates. oo uk Twitter: & Soot]landEstates

Join el ...



Sent: 30 September 2024 11:26

To:_ _scottish|andandestates.co.uk>;_
_scottishlandandestates.co.uk>;_ (Scotland) -basc.org.uk>;
_ (Evidence) _basc.org.uk>

c:NEEEEEEEE B -0t T B -t scot>;
_ _nature.scot>

Subject: Modifying licences to take or kill grouse

Dear All,

Following on from discussions, please find below a statement on the intention to modify 16AA
licences:

NatureScot will modify the licences to take or kill grouse, issued under section 16AA of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. These modifications will provide a new definition of “land to
which the licence relates”. The new definition will be the area of land which the licence holder
specifies as the area on which they will undertake the permitted activities (as opposed to the
wider landholding which is the position under the existing licences). Atthe same time, a new
condition will be introduced to ensure that the key aim of legislation — the reduction in raptor
persecution in the vicinity of grouse moors — will remain at the core of the licensing regime.

We will continue to discuss the timeframe of when this will be in place and can pick up on this
at our meeting on Wednesday morning.

Kind regards,

I | B

Naturescot | I

Naturescot | I
- I

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



Hind regards,

Fax

ot

oy R m—

Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2004 $:43 PM

To: I N - acieod co.uk>

Subject: RE: Modification process

Hi
Thanks ance again for these details. I'm hoping you can help with a couple of points for clarity;

« Maps - Descrpton of whiich boundary an 8 magp witl be the area o which the icence
relalas

The proposed revised text explamms that the relevant boundary 15 that which relates to
the area where the parmitted activities will take place. Will this description work for
licances that hawve maps with 2 boundaries but whare thera is not an explicit
label/legend stating what each boundary relates 1o?

= Timing of providing the modified licenca
Whean doas the boance holder nesd 1o recans the modiied Uoenca? 15 It after the 14
days natica period or at the sama time but with a clear explanation that the
modifications won't come into effect until 14 days later?

Many thanks,

Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2024 9:47 Al



MODIFYING LICENCES FOR LAND WHICH MAY BE USED
TO TAKE OR KILL RED GROUSE

BRIEFING TO LICENCING OFFICERS, WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT OFFICERS AND
OPERATION OFFICERS

Background

o The Wildlife Management and Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024 introduced the
requirement for anyone wanting to take or kill red grouse to need a licence

e This licence will be for the land to which the licenced activity will take place, therefore
will apply over land where red grouse may be killed or taken, this may not always
apply to an entire property and may only apply to part of a property.

e The licence is intended to be a deterrent for wildlife crime, and as such can be
revoked or modified in the event of a relevant crime being committed.

e |If revoked, this would mean no red grouse can be killed or taken on that licensed
area.

Changes to licences

e All existing licences will be modified in two ways
1. the description of the land to which the licence relates

»= This will mean it is up to the applicant to define what area of land will
be licenced and a wider land holding boundary will no longer be
required. We expect this area to be extent of any grouse moor on a
property.

* j.e. we will no longer require a red and blue boundary, instead we will
only require a map outlining the area the taking or killing of grouse will
be licenced

2. inserting a new condition
= This will require the licence holder or anyone under their control or

employment to not commit any offences related to raptors in
connection with the management of the grouse moor out with the area
covered by the licence.

e A letter notifying the licence holders that their licences have been modified along with

a modified licence will be issued in early November.
e The modification will take effect 14 days later (as per the Act).

How will we let licence holders know about these changes

We will be sending out an email on Wednesday 9™ October letting licence holders know that
their licences will be modified, how and why. This email will also let licence holders know
that they can provide a new map should they wish to. If they don’t we will assume that the
area covered by the licence will be the smaller area on maps supplied with two boundaries
and the whole area where there is one boundary. If a licence map shows multiple distinct
polygons and is not clearly labelled indicating where the licence will apply, we will need to
directly contact the licence holder or key contact to identify the correct boundary.

How will we let other stakeholders and those interested know about these changes
We will put a short, factual explanation of the proposed changes on the landing page for the
grouse licences on the NatureScot website. We will add this content on Thursday 10%"
Octaober.



Why are we making changes

*= To ensure licences are lawful and legally compliant.

» Legal advice identified that it is the applicant's responsibility to specify the area the
licence should relate.

= The new condition will be in place to maintain the policy intent of the legislation.

Media

Key messages and lines to take have been prepared
(https://naturescot.nexus.objective.co.uk/documents/A4764121/details)

Please ensure that i [l and ] are made aware of any communications from
the public regarding these changes.




DRAFT - 4th October
Red grouse: Upcoming changes
Dear ((Name)),

We are writing to let you know that we will soon be modifying all licences for land over which
red grouse may be killed or taken.

You will receive an official notice per section 16AA(10)(a) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 and a modified licence in due course. The changes will take effect 14 days after the
official notice has been issued (in line with legislation).

In this upcoming modification, we will:
e change the definition of the land to which your licence relates
e add a new condition around wildlife crime

Land to which the licence relates

The moadified definition of land will mean that we will no longer require the landholding
boundary. Instead, we will only need the boundary over which you ‘may kill or take red
grouse’. We expect this to be the extent of the grouse moor. This is likely be the smaller area
outlined on the map which you submitted with your application (if you submitted two
boundaries).

You-do-not-need-to-do-anything. If you submitted two boundaries on the map in your initial

application, NatureScot will modify your licence so that the smaller area automatically
becomes the land to which the licence relates. However, if the smaller boundary does not
accurately specify the area over which red grouse may be taken or killed, you should submit

anew map.

25t October 2024.

- You must do this before Friday

Map guidance
The map must specify the area over which red grouse may be killed or taken.

We advise you use Ordnance Survey mapping (for example OS 1:25,000 or 1:50,000) and
apply a scale bar to the map.

The file must be smaller than 10MB. Suggested file types include PDF, JPEG and PNG.

Submit your updated map with your licence number via email to licensing@nature.scot

Wildlife crime

The second change we will be making is to insert a new condition around wildlife crime. This
condition will require the licence holder to take reasonable steps to ensure that they, or
anyone under their control or employment, do not commit an offence in relation to raptors.

This condition will apply outside of the licensed area but only where offences committed are
related to management of the grouse moor.



These changes will ensure our red grouse licences are legally robust, while continuing to act
as a strong deterrent to wildlife crime as was the legislation's intent.

Regards,
Name / NatureScot Licensing
NatureScot | Great Glen House | Leachkin Road | Inverness | IV3 8NW | t: 01463 725364

NadarAlba | Taigh a’ Ghlinne Mhoir | Rathad na Leacainn | Inbhir Nis | IV3 8NW
nature.scot — Scotland’s Nature Agency — Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba — @nature_scot



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
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1N CONFEDEMCE DRAFT mot for use unbl signed off - Email fo lcence Folders e groese modifications DRAFT 4th
b 00N (AATGGEZT) - SLE-RASC Conments. doc

Caubsonl This message was seni from oulsede NatureScol

Thanks for this and for the call. | attach the draft email with some small suggestions from SLE
and BASC for consideration.

As discussed onour call, two of thesse are minor additions which hopefully you will find
agresabla.

The more substantive change is in relation to the resubmission of maps. We believe this
process could be made more streamlined for licence holders and MatureScot if there was a
presumption in favour of reverting to the smaller boundary where two boundaries have been
reflacted on existing maps. This is bolstered by a statement making clear that & map should be
resubmitted if the boundaries (or boundary) reflected do not accurately specify the area of land
onwhich grouse may be taken or killed.

Grateful if you could consider these points and return a finalised version of the draft email to
enable us construct membsern cOomims.

Best wishes,

soottiah Land &

Stunrt Howse, Eskmills Business Park, Musselbairgh EHzi PR
;‘ll:_ I _ Wi sondtishilnndandestates. ook Twiltler: fx ol Lawd st pities

Joi foday...

Sants 04 October 2024 11:35



To:_ _scottishIandandestates.co.uk>;_

Y -t scot; [T T -t < scot; [ (cotland)
_basc.org.uk>;_ (Evidence) _basc.org.uk>
Cc:_ _scottishIandandestates.co.uk>;_
|

nature.scot>
Subject: RE: Catch Up - NS/SLE/BASC

Dear All,

Ahead of our catch up shortly please see the draft email, in confidence, to licence holders re
the upcoming modifications to the licences.

Thanks,

From:_ _scottish\andandestates.co,u|<>

Sent: Thursday, October 3, 2024 1:51 PM

To: I I I I N o) I

(Evidence)

cc: I

Subject: Catch Up - NS/SLE/BASC
When: 04 October 2024 12:00-12:45 (UTC+00:00) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London.
Where: Microsoft Teams Meeting

Microsoft Teams reed help?

For organizers: Meeting options

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

soeottrsh Land & Estates

Stunrt Howse, Eskmills Business Park, Musselbuirzgh EHz 7PB
;‘ll:_-- Wi sondtishilnndandestates. ook Twiltler: fx ol Lawd st pities
.. 1 H B B N

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



Summary of position with grouse licences and process to modify them for || -
34 October 2024

Position

We have taken the decision to modify the licences for land over which red grouse may be
killed or taken following on from legal advice on what is permissible under the Wildlife
Management and Muirburn Act.

What problem are we looking to address?

The current licence application asks for a map showing the land holding boundary and area
over which the applicant has the right to take or kill red grouse. However, the Act states that
it is up to the applicant to ‘specify the area to which the licence should relate’. We initially
asked for the landholding boundary so that we could act where there were instances of
relevant offences outwith the area over which grouse were shot.

What changes will be making?
We will be making two changes to the licences:

1) new definition of the land to which the licence relates; and
2) inserting a new condition around wildlife crime (see below).

The definition of the area to which the land relates will be changed from the landholding to
the area specified by the applicant as that over which red grouse may be killed or taken.

The new condition around wildlife crime will allow us to suspend or revoke licences where
there are offences related to raptor persecution which are connected to the grouse moor
committed outside of the licensed area by the licence holder or anyone within their control or
employment. We won’t be able to revoke or suspend licences outwith the licensed area for
the other relevant offences listed in the Act — only in relation to offences in connection with
raptors.

Process to modify licences
The following steps will be taken to modify the grouse licences:

STEP 1: Proactively inform the licence holder that their licences will be modified

Send an email to all licence holders letting them know that their licences will be modified, the
reasons for the modification and when the modification will happen. Let them know that they
can resubmit a map if they would like to.

STEP 2: Licences are modified and new maps (where submitted) added

Licensing officers will upload the new maps where they have been supplied by the licence
holder. The new condition and revised text re the area to which the licence relates are
inserted into all licences.

STEP 3: Send out notification that licence has been modified and modified licence
Send an email to all licence holders letting them know that their licences have been modified
and that the modification will come into effect in 14 days.

STEP 4: Modification takes effect
Modification will take effect.

Comms plan
Key messages and lines to take have been drafted and are awaiting sign off. Staff will be
informed of these with further briefing provided for Licensing Officers, WMOs and Area staff.



These key messages are short and factual and summarise why the changes are being made
and what the changes are.

Why: To ensure the licences are legally compliant and help to meet the policy intention.
What: We will no longer require the landholding boundary instead it will be up to the
applicant to specify the area to which the licence relates. We will also be introducing a new
condition which requires the licence holder or someone under their control or employment
not to commit any offences related to raptors in connection with the management of the
grouse moor outwith the area covered by the licence.

When: We are looking to issue modified licences by the beginning of November (tbc)
How: Modified licences will explain the new definition of land to which the land relates and
will include an additional condition on wildlife crime. Modified licences will be issued to
licence holders through the on-line system.

Proposed new condition to be added to licences

1.1 The licence holder shall not do any act, and shall take reasonable steps to ensure that no
person within their employment or control shall do any act, for the purposes of or in
relation to the management of the land to which this licence relates which would be an
offence under sections 1, 5 or 6 of the 1981 Act and which:

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
Eurasian Marsh Harrier (Circus aeruginosus), Hen Harrier (Circus cyaneus), Northern Goshawk
(Accipiter gentilis), Eurasian Sparrowhawk (Accipiter nisus), Common Buzzard (Buteo buteo), Golden
Eagle (Aquila chrysaetos), Osprey (Pandion haliaetus), Common Kestrel (Falco tinnunculus), Merlin
(Falco columbarius), Eurasian Hobby (Falco Subbuteo), Peregrine Falcon (Falco peregrinus), Rough-
legged buzzard (Buteo lagopus), Barn Owl (Tyto alba), Little Owl (Athene Noctua), Tawny Owl (Strix
aluco), Long-eared Owl (Asio otus), Short-eared Owl (Asio flammeus), Showy Owl (Nyctea
scandiaca), Raven (Corvus corax)
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To: !! Eﬁﬁ FRANACEHENT -

ce E=e=

Sulyject: o upooeniee] Chanies to Grouse Licenoes

Dhatee: 08 Octokey HO2Y | 10508

Hi Folks,

Please read the briefing paper linked below regarding the modifications to Grouse licences. This
will provide everyone with information to respond to any queries you may get once licence

holders are notified on 9™ October.
If you need anymore information, please get in touch with me nr- Findlay.

fagn 1 3

Briefing paper - Grouse licence chanaes - 04 Oclober 2024 (AdTEG2ET)

Cheers,

MNatureScot |Inverdee House | Aberdeen | AB11 S0A |
nature scot | @nature scot | Scotland’s Mature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba



DRAFT NOT FOR CIRCULATION - 8th Oclober
Red grouse: Upcoming changes
Upcoming changes to your licence

Following legal guidance, we will soon be modifying all licences for the killing or taking of red
grouse.

The modifications will include:

= & change to the definition of the area of land to which your licence relates

- a new condition redating to the prevention of raptor persecution

We are writing to vou at this stage to give you the opportunity to provide us with updated
information about the area of land to which your licence relates.

For the avoidance of any doubt, this letter is not a written notice of modification for the
purposes of 16AA[10)a) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Act (the "1981 Act’), which
will be issued in due course.

Area of land to which the licence relates

The modified definition of the area of land to which the licence relates will mean that we will
no longer require the landholding boundary. Instead, we will only need the boundary of land
over which you ‘'may kill or take red grouse’. We expect this to be the extent of the grouse

TROCT,

The map which will be included on your modified licence will depend on the content of the
map you submitted with your initial application.

If you only specifipdidertifiad 1 boundary on the map submitted with your initial application,
then your original, unaltered map, will be included on the modified licence.

If you specifiiedidentifiad-2 boundaries on the map submitted with your initial application, we
will specify the smaller area as the area of land to which the licence relates. That map will ba
included on your modified licence.

In either case, if you consider that the map which you have submitted with your initial
application does nol accurately specifyehew the area of land over which you intend to kill or
take red grouse, then you can submit a new map. The new map will then be included on
your modified licence.

If you wish to submit a new map, you must do this before Friday 25" October 2024,

Map guidance

Any new map must specify the area over which red grouse may be killed or taken.

We advise you use Ordnance Survey mapping (for example OS5 1:25,000 or 1:50,000) and
apply a scale bar to the map.

The file must be smaller than 10ME. Suggested file types include PDF, JPEG and PNG.

Submit your updated map with your licence number via email to Jicensing@nature scot



Wildlife crime

The second change we will be making is to insert a new condition relating to the prevention
of raptor persecution. This condition will require the licence holder to take reasonable steps
to ensure that they, or anyone under their control or employment, do not commit an offence
in relation to raplors.

This condition will apply outside of the licensed area but only where offences committed are
related to management of the grouse moor.

Regards,

NatureScot Licensing

NatureScot | Great Glen House | Leachkin Road | Inverness | IV3 8NW | 1 01463 725364

MNadarAlba | Taigh a' Ghlinne Mhair | Rathad na Leacainn | Inbhir Nis | V3 8NW
nature scot — Scotland's Mature Agency — Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba — @nature_scot



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
purposes of 16AA(10)a) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Act (the “1981 Act’), which
will be issued in due course.

Area of land to which the licence relates

The modified definition of the area of land to which the licence relates will mean that we will

no longer require the landholding boundary. Instead, we will only need the boundary over
which you ‘'may kill or take red grouse’. We expect this to be the extent of the grouse moor.

The map which will be included on your modified licence will depend on the content of the
map you submitted with your initial application.

If you only identified 1 boundary on the map submitted with your initial application, then your
original, unaltered map, will be included on the modified licence.

If you identified 2 boundaries on the map submitted with your initial application, we will
specify the smaller area as the area of land to which the licence relates. That map will be
included on your maodified licence,

In either case, if you consider that the map which you have submitted with your initial
application does not accurately show the area of land over which you intend to kill or take
red grouse, then you can submit a new map. The new map will then be included on your
modified licence.

If you wish to submit a new map. you must do this before Friday 25™ October 2024.
Map guidance
Any new map must specify the area over which red grouse may be killed or taken.

We advise you use Ordnance Sunvey mapping (for example OS 1:25,000 or 1:50,000) and
apply a scale bar to the map.

The file must be smaller than 10MB. Suggested file types include PDF, JPEG and PNG.
Submit your updated map with your licence number via email to licensing@nature scot

Wildlife crime



The second change we will be making is to insert a new condition relating to the prevention
of raptor persecution. This condition will require the licence holder to take reasonable steps
to ensure that they, or anyona under their control or employment, do not commit an offence
in relation to raptors.

This condition will apply outside of the licensed area but only where offences committad are
related to management of the grouse moor.

Regards,

NatureScot Licensing

MatureScot | Great Glen House | Leachkin Road | Invernass | IV3 8NW | 1 01463 725364

NadarAlba | Taigh a' Ghlinne Mhair | Rathad na Leacainn | Inbhir Nis | IV3 8NW
pature scot — Scotland's Mature Agency — Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba — @nature_scot



DRAFT - 8th October
[Subject line:] Red grouse: Upcoming changes
[H1] Upcoming changes to your licence

Following legal guidance, we will soon be modifying all licences for the killing or taking of red
grouse.

The modifications will include:
- a change to the definition of the_are of land to which your licence relates
- a new condition areund-relating to the prevention of raptor persecutionwildlife-crime

We are writing to you at this stage to give you the opportunity to provide us with updated
information about the area of land to which your licence relates.

For the avoidance of any doubt, this letter is not a written notice of modification for the
purposes of 16AA(10)(a) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Act (the ‘1981 Act’), which
will be issued in due course.

[H2] Area of Eland to which the licence relates
The modified definition of the area of land to which the licence relates will mean that we will

no longer require the landholding boundary. Instead, we will only need the boundary over
which you ‘may kill or take red grouse’. We expect this to be the extent of the grouse moor.

The map which will be included on your modified licence will depend on the content of the
map you submitted with your initial application.

If you only identified 1 boundary on the map submitted with your initial application, then your
original, unaltered map, will be included on the_modified licence.

If you identified 2 boundaries on the map submitted with your initial application, we will add a
legend-label to that map which will specify the smaller area as the area of land to which the
licence relates. That map, with the legend-label added, will be issued-withincluded on your
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

If you wish to submit a new map, you must do this before Friday 25" October 2024.

[H3] Map guidance

Any new map must specify the area over which red grouse may be killed or taken, which
should be the perimeter of the relevant grouse moor.

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
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Piease find attached a draft email for circulation to licence holders to inform them about the
upcoming changes to the grouse licences. We intend to send the email to all licence holders
temormow to provide them with a heads up of the maodification and to give them an opporiunity
to supply a new map.

Thanks,

me:_ —_5mltishFa ndandestates.co.uk>

Sent: Friday, October 4, 2024 12:58 PM

To; nature scot>: nabare scobs>;

[Evidence) basc.org.uk>
L-bw:lt&-hiu ndundc‘s‘la!t&.m.uk};_
==

nature scot>
Subject: RE: Catch Up - MS/SLE/BASC

Cauton! Thes maessage was sanl iroim oulside NaureSool

Thanks for this and for the call. | attach the draft email with some small suggestions from SLE
and BASC for consideration.

As discussed on our call, two of these are minor additions which hopatully you will find
agresabls.

The more substantive change is in relation 1o the resubmission of maps. We belisve this
process could be made more streamlined for lecance holders and NaturaScot if thers was a
presumption in favour of reverting to the smaller boundary where two boundarnes have been
reflected on sdsting maps. This 15 bolstered by a statement making clear that a map should be
resubmitted if the boundarnes (or boundary) rellected do not accurately specify the area of land
on which grouss may be taken or Killed.



Grateful if you could consider these points and return a finalised version of the draft email to
enable us construct member comms.

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
Sent: 04 October 2024 11:35

To:_ _scottishlandandestates.co.u|<>;_
_nature.scot>;_ _nature.scot>;_ (Scotland)
Y scorc v [ :viderce) N 2sc o >
Cc:_ _scottishIandandestates.co.uk>;_
R e <cot>

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

To: I I I I N o~ I

(Evidence)

cc: I I

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
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Cautonl This massage was sanl from outside NaturaSonl

Thanks for this. We have distributed comms to a limited list of members we know hold section
16AA licences as discussed.

I have also made soma axtreamealy minor amendmants to your email which | hope is OF - all
relates to a particular word used in the Act as you will see which | thought it best to carry across
hara.

Best wishes,

wrrttieh Lan i
Sruart Hose, Eskmills Business Park, Musselbarngh EHzy 7P8
EEEEN

Jein hu'.h:h. L

Sent: 08 October 2024 11:31

To: “ scotlishlandandestates. co.uk>;
nawrl:.*.-.{-:\t.*;_ %_ [Scotland)
basc.org.uk=; [Evidence) basc.org uk>
scottishla nﬁandm

Cc: i

Subject: RE: Catch Up - NS/SLE/BASC

i

Flease find attached a draft email for circulation to licence holders to inform them about the




Sent: 04 October 2024 11:35
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Subject: RE: Catch Up - MSFSLE/RASC

Lrear ALl

Ahead of our cateh up shorly please sea the draft email, in confidence, to beence holders re
the upcoming modifications to the lcences.

Thanks,

Orgginal Appointment

Sent: Thursgay, October 3, 2024 1:51 PM

{Evidence)

Subject: Catch Up - NS/SLE/BASL
When: 04 October 2024 12:00-12:45 (UTC+00:00) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, Landon
Whera: Microsoft Teams Meeting

Microsoft Teams




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

Sruart Howse, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH
EEEEN

Jein hu'.h:h. .

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

To: k>;
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Subject: RE: Catch Up - MS/SLE/RASC

Lrear ALl

Ahead of our cateh up shorly please see the draft email, in confidence, to beence holders re
the upcoming modifications to the icences.

Thanks,

Orgginal Appointment

Sent: Thursoay, October 3, 2024 1:51 PM

|Evidence)

Subject: Catch Up - NS/SLE/BASL

When: 04 October 2024 12:00-12:45 (UTC+00:00) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London
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
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These are very pood points! And I'm not sure we fully have the answers to some, but it would be
good to pick these with you and go over the details!

Cheers,
MatureScot werdee House | Aberdeen B11 904 |

nature.scot | @nature scot | Scotland’s h.:.lll-'-"l.r!-"l'--.- Buidheann Madair na h-&lba

¢ror: [ 1 50

Ssent: Tuesday, October B, 2024 12:25 PM

To: [ = turescot>; AT_WILDLIFE_MANAGEMENT
<AT_WILDLIFE_MANAGEMENT @nature.scot>; ---—nature scot>;

@nalure SCOtm: @nature scots

cc —_n sture.scot - nature.scot>

Subject: RE: Ilriehng o upcoming n:hangt“s to Gr-::rus-o Licences

Hi-

Thanks for this.

| can foresesa a few questions in relation to this. Do you have any stear an the following:

= With regard to the new condition for raptor offences outside the licenced araa, how
it can be shown that an offence was committed in connaction to the managemant of
a grouse moor?

= how will this apply where an organisation is the named licence holder and the
organisation doas not control nor employ anyone directly on the land, or if they do,
how can we show this?

+ Wil the use of an organisation as the named licence holder also apply to future
muirburn licences and trap licences, which have the same terminology for "the
licence holder™ under the Act? If 50, how will the individual responsible be

identifiable to enable criminal prosecution?

Thanks



Naturescot |

naturescot | @nature_scot | Scotlond’s Noture Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

Fromm:

Sent: Tuesday, October 8, 2024 11:08 AM
To: AT_WILDUFE_MANAGEMENT <AT

Subject: Briefing on upcoming changes to Grouse Licences

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

If you need anymore information, please get in touch with me nr--

=, Ty |

Briefing paper - Grouse licence changes - 0d Oclobear 2024 (A4 TeE287T)

Cheers,

MatureScot |Inverdee House | Aberdeen | AB11 SOA |

nature.scot | @nature scot | Scotland's Nature Apency | Buldheann Madair na h-Alba
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Francescay Codin,
lust keeping you sighted on the ongoing disoussacns with 5LE about Groute Licences

have hiad a couple of calls ..l..:'_l.. |I--::- this week, trying miy best o accommodals some of their
outstending concerns, but | think the reahty i thens s only 50 much we can dao

e fpoken 1o 56 and officiads pre clear and supportive of our posifion. The Minster s aiso brefed
and understands the esue, which ina nutshell s if the licensable area is too smal , then the policy
atEnt of the bl 15 nol reahsesd
Wil update you on

L POSITIoN IOMOorrow and Rapgpy 1o e a word oF Wi read i

Regards

scpt | Scotiond’s Motwre Agency | Buidheann Nddair no h-Alba

Pronouns: hefhim | I you regeres This email Bre ar night or earhy in the morning 1 meéans | am working Rexibby but

please do not feel that you have to pick this up outside of your own normal working hours,

From: _ f_ seottishlandandestates.co.uk>

Sent: 17 July 20024 15:13

scollishlandandestates.co.uk>

= .

Subject: RE: Follow Up - Section 1644 Licensing

Coubsonl This. mSsage was Sond fom oulside NalureSool

Dear- at al

I wanted to update you on discussions we are having internally and with legal advisers = we are
awaiting further advice from our KC and don't plan to issue any further guidance to members
for the time being.

We really appreciate the ongoimng discussions and the dcceplance of some of the points we
have made, but our fundamental ISsue in relation Lo the area to which the licence relates
remains. Therelore, our advice Lo Members Lo delay applications 15 still in place.

We will be In touch as Soo0n as we recensa further advice from the KC. E-nlh- and | are ol

tomorrow | Ut | am back online on Friday.

Best regards

Sant: Tuesday, July 16, 2024 £4:02 P
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please do not feel that you have to peck [his up outsde of your own normal working hours.
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please do not feel that you have to péck this wp outside of your own normal working hours,

Sent: 15 July 2024 13:22

Tﬂ'_ &

Subject: Follow Up - Section 16404 Licensing

Importance: High

ns: hiefhim | IF you recerse This edmall Bte at night oF earhy Inthie morning o means | i wiorksng Beabhy bt



Thanks for your time, and especially to yuu.- for dialling on while on hﬂlmrqr.l and |
spoke following our discussion and just wanted to follow-up with a couple of points.,

The first is that SLE’s preferred option by far would be to designate land managed for the
purposes of killing / taking red grouse as the land to which the licence relates. This would
be in line with the legislation and, crucially, would cover the commissioning of amy relevant
offernces undertaken in pursuit of grouse moor managemant. If it would be of combort to
MatureScot to take an adaptive management approach - whare the boundary of the land to
which the licence relates relatve to the commissioning of relevant offences by relevant
parsens s monitorad - then we would be comfortable with that. Adopting this option would
causa minimum disfuption to what has already been prepared, and SLE would make clear in
subsequeant guidance that any land being managed for the purposes of killing / taking red
grouse should be shaded in blue, thereby constituting the land to which the licence will relate.
This option is unlikely to result in any challenges o the Sherft Court by prospective applicants,
and would only reguire minor bweaking to NatureScol's existing guidance.

The other options discussed are likely to result in an outcome which SLE would not consider
helpful at this crucial stage: namely the submission of applications which contain
conscientious objections to the land to which the licence relates [cumently proposed a3 being
the landholding boundary). This may take a number of forms, but would ultimately resultin
licences being rejected and appeals subsequently lodged to the Sheriff Court. In that
eventuality, our legal advice suggests that any Sheriff would likely be sympathetic to the
foliowing points, most of which we have discussed:

&

3. The perceived link batween other types of game shooting (e.g., pheasant & red-lagged
partridge) and raptor persecution should not be addressed by expanding the land to
which the licence relates. It is on the parliamentary record that such a correlation would
be addrassed by the addition of said birds to schedule 2 part 18, at which paint the land
to which a section 1644 licence would relate might reasonably expand.

4. Atenant cannot be reasonably expected to ensure compliance with a code of practice
ovar land to which they have no formal nghts (and vice-versa).

fi. Atenant may not possess a map illustrating the landholding boundary.
In summary, we feel an adaptive management approach which designates land managed for
the purposes of killing / taking red grouse would likely strike the right balance given where we
are. It would also avoid animmediate rush of appeals which are likely to reverberate and
undermine the confidence in the licensing scheme at-large.
Happy to chat further on this and will issue guidance to members once your position is
crystallised,
Bestwishes,

F



Scottish Land & Estates
Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB

M: T: scottishlandandestates.co.uk Twitter: @Scotl andEstates
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

Subject - Update on Hequest (o Delay Applications for Grouse Shooting Licences
Duta; 18 hdy 2034 13:25:00

Attachments: 3 M " - 3 DS

|G rancs: High
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Happy b check 1n [ater wi . a n. nice viou hawe had time to dipest

pature scol | Scotlond’s Noture Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

Pronouns: hef/him | § you receive this email late at night or earty in the miorning it means | am working
Hexibly bat please do not feel that you have to pick this up cutside of your own nonmal '.l,u_'ur-:inElI hiciurs

sent: 18 July 2024 11:42

nature.scot>
Subject: FW: Update on Request to Delay Applications for Grouse Shooting Licences

Caution! This message was sent from oulside MNatureScol

MM. as discussed

Kind regards,

Fieare consder Bre emeronmesnl before pondvsy ffns emaod

Hamper Macksod LLF & vl kabaty pastresrsheg iegulated by the Law Socsety of Scolland, wihose iegslensd namber s S0000331
and wihisg regeslertd oo | al The Cadon, 4% Gordon Segel, Glasgow 1 3PE, Uinded Kingdom Informalion, concissions,
opimecrs andion advice contained in this message (or s afachments) ane nol given of endorsed by Mapsss Madeod LLP, uniess
ongmnaling from Haipss Madeod LLF ard trsnsmmibed i the normal cowrse of Fes bisness. Ths message (and is alschments) s
conladential and subjec! o legal professecnal priviege:, and may be csemgd Irom dECosunt ISgurtments ansrg under appicalis
. Uise, declossr, mnsmesson, cogryng of afteraton of this messags (or is atachmenis) s sinciy iomicdden unless cxpressly
authorsed by Harper Macksod LLP. This message fand is aitschments) e miended for the named sddres=ee only. il you have
recienved this message (of s altschments ) nermor please destroy it and all copees. of il and notify the sender immeckately. This



message (and its attachments) have been scanned for viruses prior to leaving the Harper Macleod LLP network, however Harper
Macleod LLP does not guarantee that this message (or its attachments) will be free from viruses, malicious code or such like.
Harper Macleod LLP may process (including monitor) emails sent or received by it to enable it to comply with applicable law,
operate its business, and/or to protect it or its clients.



SCﬂttiSh Applying for Licences to Shoot Red Grouse
Land&Estates Guidance Released: 17 July 2024

On Friday 12 July, Scottish Land & Estates (SLE) advised mambers to delay submitting applications for
licences 1o shool grouse ahead of the 12 August 2024, This was due to NatureScol changing its position on
what would constitute fhe area of land o which the Ncence iz fo relate.

Tha definition of the srea of land ro which the eance = o relate i important in the context of licensing grouse
shooting for two rasons:

= A relevant offence committed on the land to which the licence relates by a relevant person could canmy
implications for the licence — including licence suspenskon or revocation.

s A licence holder who falls to have regard to the code of practice on the land to which the licence relates
could carry iImplications for the licence — including suspenslon or revocation

This concise briefing sets cut NatureScot's revised position and our preliminary guidance in relation ta it. If

you have any questions or queries, contact detalls for relevant SLE staff can be found at the botiom of the
briefing.

THE AREA OF LAND TO WHICH THE LICENCE IS TO RELATE

HatureScot's initial Position

Thea inifia! position adoplad by NatureScol was that land over which grouse ane taken or killed would constitute the area
af fand i winich the cence is fo elale. In most cases, this would havwe coverad land baing managed for the purposes of
shooting red grouse; or where red grouse could concelvably have been taken or killed.

MatureSoot produced an example map — see balow — safting out what they expect of applicants. in It, you will mote the
full landholding bowndary ks dencied in red, while the area over which red grouse are @aken or killed is shaded in blue,
MaturaScot confirmed warbally to SLE in the wic 01 July and i writing in Bhe wic 08 July that the blus shaded area — iLa..
land ever which grousa are taken or kllled — would conskifube ihe ansa af land fo which the icence 2 fo relate, NajuraSeol
are entitied to ask for additional information (such as the landholding boundary) as part of the application, but the
legisiation states that i s for the applicant to specity the area of land fo which the licence is o relafe.

" AT =1 = = = — — e vy e A e = — STV
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IMPORTANT NOTE: fhis information Shesl reflacts indormabon reviewed af The bme of iis publcation. Accordngly, acoount mis abseys
s ke of oy redovant changes in lw, pobcy oF olbor cincumsiancos smon Thal Bma. 1L s for genesal information only and sl nereor
b pioedd wpcn s ey Substibvie for appropristo. prolessional advice, which should ahweys ba Ekon in oy situnbion in wiich fisencial or
ofher inferests may be &l siska, ko kahdiy can b soceplad by Scolish Land & Estales of ds employees [of aimy missiabement i i or
CamUSSEon Trom it



NatureScot’s Revised Position [as of 12 July 2024]

On Friday 12 July 2024, NatureScot contacted SLE to clarify their position. NatureScot stated that the full landholding
boundary (i.e., the red boundary above) would constitute the area of land to which the licence is to relate — even in
circumstances where the majority of the landholding is managed for purposes other than grouse shooting, or where the
sporting rights over part of said landholding had been assigned under the terms of a lease.

Such a position would lead to an unacceptable situation where a sporting tenant could potentially be held accountable for
the actions of others over land to which they have no formal rights or responsibility. Similarly, inclusion of parts of a
landholding not being managed for grouse shooting could see relevant offences committed by relevant persons on said
land carrying implications for the licence to shoot grouse.

SLE’s Response

Since Friday, SLE has been working back-channels to NatureScot to highlight the legal and practical implications of their
revised position. We even took the unusual step of escalating the matter directly to the Minister for Agriculture and
Connectivity, Jim Fairlie MSP, such was the extent to which we felt the goal posts had shifted. The upshot of those
discussions is that NatureScot is standing by their revised position that the full landholding boundary (i.e., the red
boundary above) will constitute the area of land to which the licence is to relate. This is clearly an unacceptable
proposition and SLE is actively in the process of exploring options for challenging this. Unfortunately, the senior legal
counsel we have sought advice from throughout this process, q is on annual leave until 29 July, so we
will not have a clear picture on how legally and strategically best to proceed until the w/c 29 July.

GUIDANCE ON HOW YOU SHOULD PROCEED

Where possible, we would ask that you continue to delay submitting your application until we have received
advice from senior counsel in w/c 29 July, at which point we will provide further guidance. As previously briefed,
the application process is essentially autonomous, meaning the processing of applications is expected to be swift. A full
list of actions you can take to prepare is available here.

However, it is recognised and understood that estates may want licences in place as soon as possible to protect
commercial interests, and that leaving the submission of applications until late July or early August may feel too close to
the wire for some. To that end, if you do feel the need to apply for your licence at this stage, SLE is recommending the
following steps are taken.

1. Submit your licence application per the revised guidance from NatureScot.

a. If you are a landowner, you should ensure that your map specifies both the landholding boundary (red) and the area
over which red grouse are taken or killed (blue), per the above example.

b. If you are a sporting tenant, you should ensure that your map specifies the extent of your sporting rights (red) and
the area over which red grouse are taken or killed (blue).

2. Provided the landholding boundary / extent of your sporting rights is different to the area over which red grouse are
taken or killed, you should submit the following statement to NatureScot on receipt of your licence: “Per the
Wildlife Management and Muirburn Act, it is for an application to specify the area of land to which the licence is to
relate. As the applicant, | had intended that said licenced area would constitute the area over which red grouse are
taken or killed (shaded in blue). Any other information prescribed on the map constitutes additional information
which NatureScot are entitled to ask for, but it is for the applicant to specify the area of land to which the licence is to
relate.”

The practical implications of the above means that the area of land to which the will licence relate will encompass the full
extent of your landholding / sporting rights — until such a time that this successfully challenged. It is imperative that the
licence holder and relevant persons involved in managing the land for grouse shooting understand the framework for
modifying, suspending and revoking section 16AA licences and the code of practice for grouse moor management.

PLEASE DIRECT ANY QUESTIONS OR QUERIES TO:

I I

| |

E: I scottishlandandestates.co.uk E: I s cottishlandandestates.co.uk
M: I M: I

2

IMPORTANT NOTE: This information sheet reflects information reviewed at the time of its publication. Accordingly, account must always
be taken of any relevant changes in law, policy or other circumstances since that time. It is for general information only and must never
be relied upon as any substitute for appropriate professional advice, which should always be taken in any situation in which financial or
other interests may be at stake. No liability can be accepted by Scottish Land & Estates or its employees for any misstatement in it or
omission from it.



From:

To: Erancesca Osowska; Colin Galbraith
Cc:

Subject: Grouse Licensing

Date: 19 July 2024 14:51:00

Afternoon Both,
A quick update on Grouse Licences before | head off on leave:

e The team are working through a list of tasks to continue to ensure that our guidance is
clear, that the system is receiving applications and issuing licenses in line with the
guidance

o | have spoken to_ at SLE again today and we are both committed to
continuing the conversation to reach sensible resolution and ideally avoiding legal action
where we can.

e SLE Counsel is not back from leave until 29t July, so their legal position will be clearer after
that.

e Our Comms Lines agreed for reactive queries are below.

e \We are planning some proactive messages on social media channels over the next week or
so (which I highlighted this to [} who is supportive).

o- is back next week and will keep tabs on this, but | will be on the mobile if you need
me.

Regards,

Line to take

NatureScot has been working closely with stakeholders to develop a workable licensing
scheme for grouse shooting that supports those who manage their grouse moors within
the law and acts as a strong deterrent to raptor persecution.

We are aware of concerns raised about the extent of the area of land to which a licence
will apply, and we are continuing to discuss this issue with Scottish Land & Estates and
others. We are clear that licences we issue should relate to the full landholding and not
just land over which grouse are taken and killed. This is because raptor persecution
undertaken in connection with grouse moor management could take place anywhere on
a property, not just on the grouse moor itself. We are happy to clarify any
misunderstanding and there is advice available to help applicants who require any
further support.

We would encourage those who need a licence to submit their application as soon as
possible, providing all the information as requested, so that it is in line with our detailed
guidance. This will ensure that licences can be in place before the start of the grouse
shooting season on August 12.

Draft social media post

NatureScot has been working closely with stakeholders to develop a workable licensing
scheme for grouse shooting that supports those who manage their grouse moors within
the law and acts as a strong deterrent to raptor persecution.

Anyone who needs a licence is encouraged to submit their application as soon as
possible to ensure that it can be in place before the start of the grouse shooting season
on August 12. Please follow the step-by-step guidance on our website and be sure to
include all the required information and supporting documentation:

https.//www.nature.scot/professional-advice/protected-areas-and-
species/licensing/species-licensing-z-quide/red-grouse-and-licensing



nature.scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

Pronouns: he/him | If you receive this email late at night or early in the morning it means | am working

flexibly but please do not feel that you have to pick this up outside of your own normal working hours.



From:
To:
Subject: BE: Upadatn on Recuist to Doliy Apphicaticers for Grouse Shootirg Liconces
Duate: 19 Juby 2024 10:30:00

|'hanlrc<.- ared wies, | think we holdd fire on social media until the lie of the land is a bit
clearer..

]
nature scot | Scotlond’s Nature Agency | Buldheann Nodalr ne h-Alba

Pronouns: he/him | i you recese this ermasl late at night or eardy n the morning i means | am working
flaadlaby bat plesxue do not feel that you have o pick this up cutside of your own nonmal working hours.

rom: I . <'>

Sent: 19 July 2024 10:28

To: mature, scols;
nature.scot>; nature scol>

Subject: RE: Update on Request to Delay Applications for Grouse Shooting Licences

Okay tha nks- Final version below if everyone happy with this?

Do we want to hold off on issuing the social media until we ses how things play out over the
next week or so?

Line to take

NatureScot has been working closely with stakeholders to develop a workable licensing
scheme for grouse shooling that supports those who manage their grouse moors within
the law and acls as a strong defement fo raptor perseciution.

We are aware of concerns raised about the extent of the area of land to which a licence
will apply. and we are continuing to discuss this issue with Scoftish Land & Estates and
others. We are clear that icences we issue should refate fo the full lanaghoiding and not
Jjust land over which grouse are taken and killed. This Is because raplor persecution
undertaken in connection with grouse moor management could take place anywhere on
a property, nof just on the grouse moor ifself. We are happy fo clarily any
misunderstanding and there is advice available to help applicants who require any
further support.

We wouwld encourage those who need a licence to submit their application as soon as
possible, providing all the information as requested, so that it is in fine with owr detalled
guidance. This will ensure thal licences can be in place before the start of the grouse
shooting season on August 12

Draft social media post

NatureScot has been working closely with stakeholders to develop a workable licensing
scheme for grouse shooting thal supports those who manage their grouse moors within
the law and acls as a strong deferrent fo raptor persecution.

Anyone who needs a licence Is encouraged to submit their application as soon as
possible to ensure that it can be in place before the start of the grouse shooting season
on August 12. Please follow the step-by-step guidance on our website and be sure o
mc-'ud&r all the mqmmd rnfunnarrﬂﬂ and suppﬂmng dﬂc-umnmm




species/licensing/species-licensing-z-quide/red-grouse-and-licensing

From: [ - e cot>
Sent: Friday, July 19, 2024 10:23 AM

Y e scot>; [ B ctucscot>

Subject: RE: Update on Request to Delay Applications for Grouse Shooting Licences

| get it, but would prefer ‘should” if that’s ok — because this is the point of debate (and as an
aside there are some questions about whether the ones that have been issued actually comply).
As for the rest happy with your suggested revisions.

nature.scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

Pronouns: he/him | If you receive this email late at night or early in the morning it means | am working
flexibly but please do not feel that you have to pick this up outside of your own normal working hours.

Sent: 19 July 2024 10:11

Subject: RE: Update on Request to Delay Applications for Grouse Shooting Licences

Thanks both, | have slightly simplified that addition for ease of reading and | would also
suggest losing the word “should” — presumably we’ve already issued licences so we can be
definite about this.

Happy with this version?

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
others. We are clear that the-licences we issue shottd relates to the full landholding and
not just land over which grouse are taken and killed. This is because raptor persecution
undertaken ferthe-benefit-of in connection with-the grouse moor management could
take place anywhere on a property, not just on the grouse moor itself. We are happy to
clarify any misunderstanding and there is advice available to help any applicants who
require any further support.

We would encourage those who need a licence to submit their application as soon as
possible, providing all the information as requested, so that it is

and in line with our detailed guidance:
we-have-provided. This will ensure that licences can be in place before the start of the
grouse shooting season on August 12.

Sent: Friday, July 19, 2024 9:55 AM

Subject: Re: Update on Request to Delay Applications for Grouse Shooting Licences




Subject: RE: Update on Request to Delay Applications for Grouse Shooting Licences

Hiow about this
Line to take

NatureScot has been working closely with stakeholders o develop a workable licensing
scheme for grouse shooling thal supports those who manage their grouse moors within
the law and acts as a strong deferrent fo raptor persecution.

We are aware of concerns raised about the extent of the area of land to which a licence

will apply. and we are continuing to discuss this issue with Scoltish Land & Estates and
others. We are clear that the licence relates to the full landholding and not just land over
which grouse are taken and killed. This is because raplor persecution undertaken for
the benefit of the grouse moor management could take place anywhere on a property,
not just on the grouse moor itself. We are happy to clarify any misunderstanding and
there is advice available to help any applicants who require any further support.

We wouwld encourage those who need a licence to submit their application as soon as
possible and in ine with the detailed guidance we have provided. This will ensure that
licences can be in place before the start of the grouse shooting season on August 12.

_heers,

pature scot | Scotiond’s Naoture Agency | Buldheann Nadair na h-Alba

Pronouns: hefhim | B you receive this emall late at night or early in the morning it means | am working
flexibly but please do not feel that you have to pick this up cutside of your own normal working hours.

¢rorn: N I <<

Sent: 18 July 2024 17:02

Subject: RE: Update on Request to Delay Applications for Grouse Shooting Licences

Hi all
A starter for 10 for comment:
Line to take

NatureScot has been working closely with stakeholders to develop a workable licensing
scheme for grouse shooting that supports those who manage their grouse moors within
the law and acls as a strong delerrent fo raptor parsecution.

We are aware of concemns raised about the extent of the area of land to which a licence



will apply, and we are continuing to discuss this issue with Scottish Land & Estates and
others. We are clear that the licence relates to the full landholding and not just land over
which grouse are taken and killed. This is because... (|Jjii] couv/d you provide
some brief detail on rationale) We are happy to clarify any misunderstanding and there
is advice available to help any applicants who require any further support.

We would encourage those who need a licence to submit their application as soon as
possible and in line with the detailed guidance we have provided. This will ensure that
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

Many thanks

erom: [ T - scot>
Sent: Thursday, July 18, 2024 1:59 PM

Subject: RE: Update on Request to Delay Appl|cat|ons for Grouse Shooting Licences

Yes — free now if that suits everyone?- —can you send round a link?

nature.scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

Pronouns: he/him | If you receive this email late at night or early in the morning it means | am working
flexibly but please do not feel that you have to pick this up outside of your own normal working hours.

Sent: 18 July 2024 13:57

Subject: RE: Update on Request to Delay Applications for Grouse Shooting Licences

Hi




I've read the SLE note, Some fisestions and some thoughts I'm free all afiernoon for a call

Should we |1r||'|g_ trvto this discussion as well?

From: -

Sent: Thursday, July 18, 2024 1:26 PM

To: nature scot>

Subject: FW: Update on Request to Delay Applications for Grouse Shooting Licences
Importance: High

need to get our heads round the comms on this — 5o we are on the front foot where

Happy to chack in late '.'.'l:-'- .1-'ui. once you have niad time to digest...
§

ature scot | Scotlond’s Noture Agency | Buidheann Nadair ng h-Alba

Pronouns: he/him | If you recesve this email late at night of early in the morning it means | am working

flexibly but please do nat feel that you have 1o pick this op cutside of your own normal working hours,

From:
Sent: 18 July 2024 11:42
To:

Subject: PW: Update on Request Lo Delay Applications for Grouse Shoating Licences

Caution! This message was sant from outside NatureScol,

Attached. as discussed.

Kind regards,



Frosmi;

Subsjact: FW LSRN 29T 200
Date: 07 Augpust 2024 145100
Attachemssnis: WELIO00T g

From: |+ - <04 ok

Sent: Wednesday, July 31, 2024 5:39 PM

Subject: RE; SLE discussion 29/ 72024

Cotdion] This masseps was sant from oulsade MalureSool

«

Fiaase sea my respontes balow = | think this covers all of the ponts for ma, but ket me know i not or o
any clanfication is required

Kind regards,

Sant: Tuesday, luby 30, 2024 4:36 PM

TD:_il.':fpe‘I macleod oo, uks

Subject: RE: SLE discussion 2977/ 2024

i

_.u'lclnng Lip on grouse loence SCussions,

It would be good o catch up on the quesions in the amail below, | also have some ather
queries from another stakeholder, which it would be good to check our proposed answers to. |

will get them across to you separately.

Have you got soma Lime tomaornow?



Many thanks,




Firam:

T e e

Ce:

Subject: Fed: Restricied, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Opinion of Senior Cownsel = The Land to which the
Section 16AK Licence Relstes

Dl e: 02 Acigisn 2024 1140k
mrmenis: LIFERICIN O 2 JCA Lol

, as expected please find attached from SLE. I'm at the game fair today so haven't
been able (o access the document yet but i'm available on the phone if you can consider
and if we need to speak today

| | l- ‘



_— _ ||1



Frosimi;

Tn. '

Subsject: HE: Conlidontial and wibjoct 1o logal priviiogo - [nitsal thoughts on conditionality appoach
Date: 03 August 2024 DE:55 00

Attachemsenis: WRDON01 ipg

Many th:ml-t-

I'll get back ta you with any thoughts as soon as | can.

Thanks.

F;um:—ll.j'r.:-l_'rrrl.:l-: T g AT

Sent: Thursday, Aupust B, 2024 9:28 PM

Subject: Confidential and subject to legal privilege - Initial thoughts on conditionality approach

Canftican Ths masssgs was Senl from oulside NelumSoo

|




F rosti;
Te:
Swbseci: Bt - Conludoniial and subjoct to legal privilego - Initial thoughls on conditionality approach

Date: 12 Musgust 2024 114500

H

| hope you have had time to digest this mona fully

Can you let me know when would suit you today to discuss this? We have a mﬁetultg St up
with SL&E & BASC on Wednesday and we are also getting media requests coming in thick and

fast on the back of it being 12*" August.

. and | are available all day - so il you can et me know when suns |will set up a call

Many Thanks,




Constiond Thes m







emails sent or received by it to enable it to comply with applicable law, operate its business, and/or to protect it or its clients.



F posima;
Ta;
Subsjoct: | stureSont

Date: T2 Mgt 2024 084000
At achemesnds: WRDON ipg

i

Many thanks for thase datails around patantial conditions.

Have you heard back 1r|:-n'-ﬂ.|'e'm=. got a meeting scheduled tomorrow morning with SLAE
and BASC and it would be EI}I':-I.'I L] EE"-[ any turther TITDI.IE'J"I?E ar feedback ahead of this

Many thanks,

Conslica] Thes masasads was Sonl irom oulsds NaiunSon

Hi




From:

To: - :
G¢.
Saushyject: condition - grodse Boence - in )

DCaane: 16 Septembar 004 14:43.0K

i

Az you are aware, we are considering options to modify the grouse licensing scheme by
changing the guidance around the area which the licence covers and adding a condition
related to wildlite crime, Wa would welcome your views on the proposed condition, which
has been drafted with input from senior legal counsel, set out below:

The modified scheme will propose a licence condition along the following lines:

1 Conditions relating to land managemeini

1.1 The licence holder shall ensure thal nothing is dome for the purposes of or in relabon io the
managamant of the land fo which this icence relates, which would be an offence under
sections 1, 5 or 6 of the 1381 Act and wiich:
1.1.1 involves any of the spacies mantioned at 1.2 of this condition; and
1.1.2 lakes place on land other than that fo which this licence relates.

12 The specias referred lo af 1.1.7 of this condilion are as follows:
[Raptars efc.]

We hawve given sight of this proposed draft to SL&E and BASC and are meeting with them
again on Wednesday.

Many thanks,

|
NatureScot | [N
NatureScot | I

m

—'TH—I—

npature scob | Scobiond’s Nature Agency | Buidheonn Nadair na h-Alba




From:

Ta: _seottsh Givarmment.: [ -5 Coemme
ﬂ_—
Subgect; rictid, Confidential & Lagally Privieged - Draft Condition - Section 16AK Licences
Dats: 0 Septoerber 2024 16:13:04
Anschments; TR g
mgei ity
ATEMHEEL g
i o]
AT JHTg
LatTLLUN L

Ta keap you sighted on where we are in terms of moving to an applicant determining the land to
which the licence relates with a conditioned approach to grouse censing.

The IR timeframe means a way forward would need to be identified by and of next weealk.

nafure scol | @nature scol | Scotland’'s Nature Agency | Buidheann Madair na h-Alba

Fl'l:rn'l:- *_hl'.J.Il[Ibhlulr'lddI"I destates.co.uk

Sent: Friday, September 20, 2024 3:04 PM

To: nature scoks;
naluresools; nature ':-l'.-i.'li-":_

nabure scol>

scottishlandandestates.co ulk:>

@ gillespiemacandrew. couk;

@huat.urg.uk-‘r;-
[ [l=ws

Sublect: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Draft Condition - Section 1644 Licences

Cavtiond This messans was senl fom outsids Netumeccod

Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privilagad - Intended for Subject Holdars Only

Mary thanks for your emal which we acknowledge and look Torwand to discussing later this
aftermoon.

In relation to 1.1.2, wa did provide a secondary aption in the commant margin which would not
prejudice your ability 1o act in the circumstance you describe. | have reflected this amendment
in red below for ease of ralerence and outlined the rationsle balow.

1. The Fcence holder shail not do any acl, and shall lake reasonable sheps fo ensung that no persen
withir their employrment or conlrel shall do any act, for the purposes of or in relalion fo the
management of the land o which thiz Feence refales which would be an offence under sechons



T, 5 or § of the 1987 Act and which:
1.1.1  involves any of the spacies mentioned at 1.2 of this condifion; and

1.1.2 lakesz pracE on [and other than iad fo whuch s hedncs reales Huf [he managemaent of
WTHEN A5 &N .'-"l."-‘"-:'l:l.-':lf.- the licence holder

2. The species referred to al 1.1.1 of this condition are as follows

Honey Buzzard (Permis apivorus), Red Kite (Mivis mivus), White-talled Eagle (Hallesefus albicilla),
Evurazian Marsh Harmer (Circus aseruginosus), Hen Mamer (Circus cyansus), Northem Goshawk (Accipifer
gentilis), Eurssian Sparowhawk (Accipiter risus), Common Buzzard (Buteo buteo), Golden Eagle

{Aquita chrysastos), Osprey (Pandion halisetus), Commeon Kesirel! (Falco Bnnuncwlus), Merdin (Falco
columbanius), Evvasian Hobby [Falco Subbufeo), Peregrine Falcon (Falco peregrinus), Rough-legged
buzrzard (Buleo lagopus), Bam Owd (Tyto alba), Liftfe Owl (Athene Noctua), Tawny Owl (Sirix alwco), Long-
eared Owl (Asio olus), Shorf-sared Cwd (Asio flammeus), Snowy Owl (Wyclea scandiaca), Raven (Convus
corax)

Grateful if this point

could be given consideration ahead of our call at 1630

| also note your referance to the legislative intent: "addressing the 15sues of raptor persscution
in the vicinity of grouse moors”. This being the cases, wea wera surprised to sees the Raven

| Convus corax) referend in the species at 1.2 gnvan itis clearly a conad and not a rapgtor. I0would
be usestul 1o hear the rationale for this when we speak at 1630 and, in particular, whsther
consideration might be given to remaving it trom the species lSL

Best wishes,

hlancapdestates oo uk Deatier: 6500l andt

_||.-| 71 Ty



Sent: 20 September 2024 14:26

To:_ _scottish|andandestates.co.u|<>;_
_nature scot>
_ _scottlshlandandestates co.uk>; _

I i ccandicew co.. [ - o .i-; I
e
Subject: RE: Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Draft Condition - Section 16AA Licences

Dear-

Thank you for sharing this with us. We have discussed with our own external advisers, Harper Macleod

L, an

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
eared Owl/ (Asio otus), Short-eared Owl (Asio flammeus), Snowy Owl (Nyctea scandiaca), Raven (Corvus
corax)

The change at 1.1, is intended to address || l] ‘ovarantee” point in respect of those in the
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
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Requires Legal input

The area of land to which this licence relates for the purposes of section 16AA(6)(a)(ii) of the
1981 Act is marked on the map submitted with the application for this licence as the area on
which such birds may be killed or taken.

Licence conditions

1. Regard for Code of Practice

You, as the Licence holder, must have regard for the code of practice:
https://www.nature.scot/doc/quidance-code-practice-grouse-moor-management

2. Recording and reporting requirements

You must keep details of number of red grouse killed or taken on the land throughout the
licence period (even if it is nil). You must keep details of how you comply with the Code of
Practice. You must provide these details on an annual basis.

3. General

If you no longer require this licence - for example, due to a change in ownership or lease
agreements - you must notify NatureScot and submit all required returns.

NatureScot reserves the right to access the land associated with this licence for the purpose
of compliance monitoring of the licenced activity and to ensure adherence to the licence
conditions. NatureScot staff may be accompanied by other relevant person(s) to assist in
this function.

You must be able to produce a copy of this licence to any Police Officer, authorised person,
or official of NatureScot on demand.

You must inform NatureScot if there are any changes to your contact details.

You must inform NatureScot of any relevant convictions of anyone working under this
licence.

Advisory notes

This licence is granted subject to compliance with the conditions as specified. Anything done
otherwise than in accordance with the terms of this licence may constitute an offence.

This licence may be modified, revoked or suspended by NatureScot.
Methods of killing prohibited under section 5 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

include; automatic weapons and shot-guns with a barrel that has an internal diameter at the
mule of more than one and three-quarter inches.

Map

The image below is a reference to the map of the area, to which this licence relates,
submitted with this application.

Contact the Licensing team if you require a copy of the original file (full size).

This page contains no comments



requies Legatinpdt This page contains no comments

Email: licensing@nature.scot
Telephone: 01463 725364

[Embedded map shows here]




From:

Tae

c¢-

Suhject: In confidence - drafl bext Tor icence
Date: #4 Suptombor 2004 1000300
Attachments: L i i

+

Here is the draft text for the changed licance - the key section it would be helpful to get
your feadback on is ‘parmitted activities' - this is whare the changes re boundaries are

explained.

As par our chat earliar it would ba good to gat your adwvice an the options for moditying
licancas and anything we need 1o take into account from a legal perspective. It would be
good to also understand the process re notifying LH's and the 14 day period.

We are meating with SL&E again on Wed and it would be halpful to provide them with some
details on how we can gree tham a commitment to make the changes aheaad of the changes

coming into affect.

Many thanks

L * L]
NatureScot | |NEEG—_G | A | ——

Naturescot | I | o | e | e | ——
o I

Enature_scob | Scobland’s Nature Agency | Buidheonn Nodair ma h-Alba

Aimmomis emonia
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




C -
Ta:

Subwect: W tlhication procoes

Dato: 5 Sophomibaor 00 151800

Attachemsnis: I confidenco - draft bext for boenoo{Z7755774. VL. mag el

WEDEKH ipa
Just going into a meeting wnh. TIE- AN catch up on any of details in email below after
that

Frﬂm:—h.l'pl'rrll-n leod. co.uk>

Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2024 2:19 PM

5uhject- FW: Modification process

Caulionl Ths messags was sanl from oulside MaluraScaol

Mags = | have just gone through the onling application and note that the applicant has fo upload a mag
which “must show the landholding boundary and arsa aver which you have the right fo kill or fake red
grouse. Your document musl be smaler than TS

The system then produces a licence which defines the land on which permitted activities can take place
&% Whe area of l[and spechied on the map sebmlted wath ifrs appivcabon as e afea on which sueh bards
may be killed or taken.”

The guidance explains to the applicant that they have fo upload "4 map which shows the landhoiding
Doundary and areas over which you have the ngid fo kil or fake grouse = Hhis will be he area fo which
the fcence relales and the area over which red grouse may be kiled or faken, *

Timing = | think we covenad this off in a subsaguent call, but. for completeness, there i no oblsgabion to
reisae the licence as modified — it is sufficient to only give notice of the modification

Kind regards,




From:

Ce:
Suhjerct: ICIAL SENSITIVE - proposal to modify Bosnos
Date: 2T Soptomber J0E4 T2 360K

Hi

Here iz a link to a paper setting out the rationale and seeking sign for the decision to modify
grouse licences:

OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE Proposal to modify licences to take or kill red grouse - paper to

sign off decision
hittps:/ paturescol nexus obijective couk/documents' A4 TH3 0801 idetails

And below is the proposed draft text to forward to SL&E and BASC to commit to making
these changes (this incorporates advice from -

Based on challenges to the current approach to icensed areas and having taken advice
from senfor counsel NatureScot has taken the decision to modify the licences to take or kill
grouse, issued under section 1644 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, These
maoadifications will provide a new definition of “land to which the licence relates”, The new
defirution will be the area of land which the licenca holder specifias as the ares on which
they will undertake the permitted activities (as opposed to the wider landholding which is
the position under the existing licences). At the same time, a new condition will be
introduced to ensura that the key aim of legislation - the reduction in raptor parsacution in

the vicinity of grouse moors —will remain at the core of the licensing regimae,

| spoke to ] and have agreed to circulate the decision paper once signed off to him
EI'II:I-. | have also agreed to keep them sighted on comms meassageas, lines to take and
timetable to both licence holders and wider stakeholders. They will update the Minister.

We've got a catch up on Wednesday afternoon so can provide more detail then.

Many thanks,

|

Naturescot | [N 1

NatureScot | I —I— |—I—
|- =i

mi:

| Enature_scot | Scoffand’s Nature Agency | Buidheonn Nodair ma h-Alba




OFFICIAL- SENSITIVE
DRAFT
Decision to modify licences to take or kill red grouse

Purpose
The purpose of this paper is to seek sign off for the decision to modify licences to take or kill
grouse, issued under section 16AA of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.

Action
e To note the rationale behind the decision to modify the licences to take or kill red grouse
e To sign off the decision to modify the licences to take or kill red grouse

Background

NatureScot was given delegated authority to introduce licences to take or kill red grouse in
July 2024. The on-line application form was launched on 15" July. As of September 27"
2024, there were 240 active licences. The policy intent of the licence to take or kill red
grouse is to deter raptor persecution. Provisions sought to introduce an ability for licences to
be suspended or revoked where there was evidence that a relevant offence had been
committed where there was a connection between the licenced activity (management for the
purposes of grouse shooting) by the licence holder or someone involved in managing the
land to which the licence relates.

The Act as passed however restricted this provision to ‘on the land’ to which the licence
relates. The Act also states that is for the applicant to determine the land to which the
licence relates. This has the effect of restricting the area to which relevant crimes can be
considered for the purposes of suspension or revocation.

The licensing process currently requests a map showing the boundary over which the
applicant seeks the licence to take or kill grouse and the landholding boundary (if different).
All issued licences include an embedded map and text explaining that the area of land to
which the licence relates is the landholding boundary and the area over which the applicant
has the right to take or kill grouse is the area in which the permitted activities can take place.

This approach to determining the area of land to which the licence relates has been
challenged on the basis that it went beyond the powers set out in the legislation. Senior
Counsel opinion has confirmed potential grounds for successful challenge. However, this
noted that the effect of restricting the area to which the licence related would make it difficult
to achieve the policy intent where there were instances of relevant wildlife crime connected
to the management of the grouse moor but outwith the licensed area.

Position and way forward

We have sought legal advice on addressing scenarios where wildlife crime related to the
management of the grouse moor had occurred outwith the area specified in the licence. The
advice has settled on developing a condition which requires the licence holder or persons
under their employment or control to not commit any offences in relation to raptors outside of
the licenced area. The approach and detail have been developed with advice and feedback
from our solicitor and senior legal counsel. It has also been shared and discussed with those
who had raised the potential legal challenge.

Care has been taken in drafting a ‘reasonable’ condition which does not innovate on the
legislation and therefore is a defendable way forward. This may realise, at least in part, the
intent of the legislation to address raptor persecution associated with grouse moor
management. However the condition is restrictive in the circumstances in which it can be



applied and in the need for the licence holder to take ‘reasonable steps to ensure..’ offences
have not been committed.

Modifying the (approx. 240) licences which are currently in place comes with risk in that
individual licence holders appeal the modification to the sheriff court. The is also still a risk of
Judicial Review.

To fully achieve what we believe to be the original intent of the legislation will require a
change to the primary legislation.

Decision
On the basis of addressing the potential legal challenge and moving forward with a more
defendable licensing approach approval is ought to modify licences to take or kill red grouse

by:

¢ Accepting and changing the guidance around the area of land to which the licence
relates to being that which the applicant specifies and not requiring details on the full
boundary of the landholding.

¢ Adding a new condition (see Annex 1) around wildlife crime associated with raptors
outwith the licensed area.



Annex 1. Proposed new condition to be added to licences

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
aluco), Long-eared Owl (Asio otus), Short-eared Owl (Asio flammeus), Snowy Owl (Nyctea
scandiaca), Raven (Corvus corax)



From:
To:
Cc:
Subject: Summary of position with grouse licences and process to modify them for- (A4765291)
Date: 03 October 2024 16:49:00

Hil

As promised, here is a summary of position and process re making changes to grouse

licences:

Summary of position with grouse licences and process to modify them for

https://naturescot.nexus.objective.co.uk/documents/A4765291/details

Happy to add any detail

Thanks,



Modifying licences for land which may be used to take or kill red grouse

Communications - Key messages and lines to take

Key messages

Background

e The Wildlife Management and Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024 introduced the requirement
for licences to be in place over land where shooting of red grouse would take place.

¢ NatureScot was given the delegated authority to develop and implement these licences.
The intention of the licences is to act as a deterrent to wildlife crime. They can be
removed where there is evidence of relevant offences being committed by anyone
involved in managing the land under licence on the land to which the licence relates.
Removing a licence would mean that it would be an offence for anyone to shoot red
grouse on that area of land.

e The licences were launched in July 2024.

What is happening

e NatureScot will be modifying the licences for land which may be used to take or kill red
grouse.

e We will be making two changes — 1) to the description of the land to which the licence
relates and 2) inserting a new condition around wildlife crime.

¢ The changes will mean that it will be up to the person applying for the licence to specify
the area to which the licence relates. We will no longer require the landholding boundary.

e In practice we expect that the area covered by the licence will be the extent of the grouse
moor.

o At the same time, we will introduce a new condition which requires the licence holder or
anyone under their control or employment to not commit any offences related to raptors
in connection with the management of the grouse moor outwith the area covered by the
licence.

e We are looking to issue modified licences in November.

e The modified licences will explain the new definition of land to which the land relates and
will include an additional condition on wildlife crime. Modified licences will be issued to
licence holders through the on-line system.

Why it is happening

e We will be making these changes to help ensure that the licences are lawful and legally
compliant and that we are competent in our role as a regulator

e Legal advice identified that it is up to the applicant to specify the area over which the
licence should relate.

e We have introduced a new condition to help ensure that we can help meet the policy
intent of the legislation i.e. tackle raptor persecution.

Lines to take

NatureScot has been working closely with stakeholders and our legal advisors to develop
and deliver a workable licensing scheme for grouse shooting that supports those who
manage their grouse moors within the law and acts as a strong deterrent to raptor
persecution.

Following further legal advice about the area of land to which the licence relates, we will be
modifying licences. Licences will now cover the land specified by the applicant as the area



where they may kill or take red grouse. We will also add a new condition to licences which

will allow us to act if raptor persecution which is connected to the grouse moor takes place
outside of this licensed area.

This is a new licence for NatureScot and, as with all our licences, we continually review and
develop our processes to identify improvements. These changes will ensure our grouse

licences are legally robust, while continuing to act as a strong deterrent to wildlife crime as
was the legislation's intent.



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
¢ change the definition of the land to which your licence relates
e add a new condition around wildlife crime

Land to which the licence relates

The modified definition of land will mean that we will no longer require the landholding
boundary. Instead, we will only need the boundary over which you ‘may Kill or take red
grouse’. We expect this to be the extent of the grouse moor. This is likely be the smaller area
outlined on the map which you submitted with your application (if you submitted two
boundaries).

If you submitted two boundaries on the map in your initial application, NatureScot will modify
your licence so that the smaller area becomes the land to which the licence relates.
However, if the smaller boundary does not accurately specify the area over which red grouse
may be taken or killed, you can submit a new map. You must do this before Friday 25
October 2024.

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
condition will require the licence holder to ensure that they, or anyone under their control or
employment, do not commit an offence in relation to raptors.

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
Subject: Timitabls s kiry dates for modifing grouse leances
Date: OF October 2024 16:45-00

i

Below is a summary of the proposed timetable for modifying the grouse licences:

Tues 8" Oct - circulate briefing to all Licensing Officers, Wildlife Management Officers and
Oparational Managers on key points ré upcoming modihcation

Weadnasday 9" Det — send email out to all licence holders providing tham with a heads up
that modifications are plannad. Put details on intranat about the changes 50 all staff are
aware

Thursday 10" Oct - add factual details of the proposed modification on the grouse pages
on the internet

wic 28" October - look to issue modification notice and modified licences

Key messages and lines to take are in place -

hittps: ! maturesool e s oo e ook documents! A4764 1 2 Vdetalls, They ve been
shared with 5G illll|~ has also had sigh. The email letting the licence holders know
about the modification has been drafted with Input fmmﬁ

Let me know if you need any further details at this point or if you have any guestions.

Many thanks,

N .
NatureScot | I § I | N | I
NatureScot | G | I | IR | S

gnature scob | Scolfond’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nodair na h-Alba




To: :
Subjsct BE: DERAFT ot for s until sged off - Ky massages snd lnes 1o tike on modifying grouss icences -
DRAFT Jed October 2004 (AATE4121)

Date: 08 October H024. 008 1700

Here iz a final version, In relation to your comment, we have kept that bullet in as its aims
is to try and reduce potential for smaller areas - hope that makes sense,

The plan is to circulate an aemail to licence holders temorrow Lletting tham know that
changes will be coming. We will then add a summary of the proposed changes and why
they are being made to the grouse licensing page on our website on Thursday. This will
draw on the kay massages.

Can you let me know if you have any comments on any of this?

Many thanks,

From SN o NN <~ <1

Sent: Friday, October 4, 2024 1:36 PM

To: _nalure.scul;-;_ - Scottish Government

Epow_ sCols
Subject: RE: DRAFT not for use until signed off - Eey messages and lines to take on modifying
grouse licences - DRAFT 3rd October 2024 (A4764121)

Caution] This meassage was sant from outside MaturaScol.

HI-

See a couple of changes and one comment. Also m:luding- in case he
would like to review early next week.

Thanks

eeorn: N N .-
Sent: Friday, October 4, 2024 9:59 AM

o: I -

Subject: DRAFT not for use until signed off - Key messages and lines to take on modifying grouse
licences - DRAFT 3rd October 2024 (A4764121)



Here are the draft key messages and lines to take re modifying the grouse licences.
Can you let me know any comments?

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

*hkkkhhkkkhkkkkhkkkhkkhkkkhhkkhkkhkhkkkhhkhkhkhkkhhkkkhhhkkhkhkhkkhhkkhkkhhkkhhkhkkhhkkkhhkhkkhkhkkhhkkihkkhkkikhkikkiiikkx

*kkkk

This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it) is intended
solely for the attention of the addressee(s). Unauthorised use, disclosure, storage,
copying or distribution of any part of this e-mail is not permitted. If you are not
the intended recipient please destroy the email, remove any copies from your
system and inform the sender immediately by return.

Communications with the Scottish Government may be monitored or recorded in
order to secure the effective operation of the system and for other lawful
purposes. The views or opinions contained within this e-mail may not
necessarily reflect those of the Scottish Government.

*hkkkhkhkkkhkkkkhkkkkhkkkhhkkhkkhhkkkhkhkhkkkhhkkkhhkkhkkhhkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkhkhhkkkhhkhhkkikkhkkihkhkkikkikkikkikikkx

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



Sent: ]I.JI“\.I:J.I','_ Octaber 8§ 2024 8:4% Ak

Tn:- _ harpermacleocd.couk>

S-uljih:l'. RE: IN CONFIDEMCE DRAFT not for wuse until '.|r'||||:'-::| off - Email to heence halders re BroLise
modifications DRAFT 4th October 2024 (84 766829)

| note that the suggest edits remove the para on the additional condition. Would be Eood to get
your views on this? The letter is intended to be a heads up of the changes which will be made
as wall as letting tham know they could supply a different map - is thare a reason for not
including ref to the new condition in the letter?

Many thanks,

Sent: Monday, October 7, 2024 11:25 AM

vo: I T e ot

Subject: IN CONFIDENCE DRAFT mot for use until sipned off - Email to licence holders re grouss
modifications DRAFT 4th October 2024 (A4766823)

L
| have revised, per attached. | think this reflects what is being attempted by Step 1 - although everything
turns on the final definition of tha map.

Kind regards,

We will nol change bank accounl delads during the cowrse ol a arsacion. 1 you are des o Fonskes money o Harper Mackeod and

faree meceed an e-mal with sorl oode and account delais you shookd call yoor Haper Mackeod conloo o comoborrie These detals



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
Thoiribh an aire airson adhbharan gnothaich, ‘s docha gun téid suil a chumail air puist-dealain a’ tighinn a-steach agus a’ dol
a- mach bho NadarAlba.



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
- a change to the definition of the land to which your licence relates
- a new condition around wildlife crime

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

[H2] Land to which the licence relates

The modified definition of land will mean that we will no longer require the landholding
boundary. Instead, we will only need the boundary over which you ‘may Kkill or take red
grouse’. We expect this to be the extent of the grouse moor.

The map which will be included on your modified licence will depend on the content of the
map you submitted with your initial application.

If you only identified 1 boundary on the map submitted with your initial application, then your
original, unaltered map, will be included on the licence.

If you identified 2 boundaries on the map submitted with your initial application, we will add a
legend to that map which will specify the smaller area as the area of land to which the
licence relates. That map, with the legend added, will be issued with your modified licence.
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




[H2] Wildlife crime

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



Frorm:

To —
Ce: i

Suhject: - Growss |ornsing e

Datm: Of October 2024 OF; 200

We would be happy to meet and discuss this.

As you point out our licensing approach has to be informed by the wording in the Wildlife
Managament and Muirburn Act and we have bean working with legal advice to detarmine
how to help ensure that the licences are legally competent. This has highlighted an issue
around boundaries and what the Act allows us to ask for by way of the land to which the
Lcancea ralates. Advica from lawyers is that tha Act does not allow far us to apply tha
licence to the landholding, unless this area is specified as being the area to which the
licence should relate by the applicant. As a conseguence, we will be changing our
guidance on this, but we will be clear that we expect the licence to cover the extent of the
grouse moor. From our understanding and from the licences we havea to date there is no
indication that applicants are looking to stipulata a tiny area. To ensura that we can still
revoke a licence where there is raptor persecution outwith the licensed area, we will be
adding a new condition to the licence.

We will add same axplanatory taxt about these ehangas on our weabgite LomMoarraw,
Let rme know if you would like to discuss this further and | will look to set up a meeting.

Many thanks,

From S

Sent: Tuesday, October 8, 2024 646 PM
To:

nature.scol=

@rspb.org.uk>

nature.scol>:

Subject: RE; Grouse Licensing issue

Caulion This messags was sent from outsids NaluraSceod,

Good afternoon folks,

At a recent mpel:inp,- and | had with Scottish Government officials, we expressed our
concern that the wording of the Wildlife Management and Muirburn Act seems to enable a land
manager to apply for a grouse shooting licence that only needs to include a tiny area around
grouse shooting butts, because that is the precise area is where grouse “may be killed or taken”,



We assume that in such a scenario, NatureScot cannot revoke or suspend that licence even if it is
satisfied that a relevant offence by a person connected to the management of the wider grouse
moor, away from the tiny area covered by the licence, has taken place?

We understood, from the below conversation, that NatureScot’s position was that licences
would relate to an entire landholding — we would be grateful if you could confirm if this is still
the position. While you acknowledged previously that you were in dialogue with SLE about this
issue, we would also be grateful if you could provide any information about wider stakeholders
who were consulted during these discussions.

Given the scenario we describe earlier potentially undermines the primary purpose of the
legislation, it would be good to know where NatureScot stands on this issue, and whether a
future amendment to the legislation is required.

We're grateful for any information you can provide, and of course, will be happy to meet and
discuss these issues.

Kind regards,

Sent: Friday, July 19, 2024 1:27 PM

o S - --- ... I

- rspb.org.uk>

c: I B <o T B e scot>;
I - .. >

Subject: RE: Grouse Licensing issue

Thanks for getting in touch.

In Summary —we are in dialogue with SLE about different interpretations of the act and how we
are applying it. Specifically in relation to the area of land that 16AA licences relates to and
whether it is the applicant or us as the licencing authority who ultimately decides.

We are clear that licences we issue should relate to the full landholding and not just land over
which grouse are taken and killed, because as you well know, raptor persecution undertaken in
connection with grouse moor management could take place anywhere on a property, not just on
the grouse moor itself. | suspect this may rumble on a for a couple of weeks yet and might
ultimately end up in a legal challenge. | will ask- to catch up with you in more depth when
he is back from leave next week.

Regards,



'
nature scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

Pronouns: hefhim | ¥ you receive this email late at night or early in the maorning it means | am working
flexibly but plesse do not feel that you have to pick this up cutside of your own nonmal working hours.

prom: [ -1 >

Sent: Thursday, July 18, 2024 2:03:38 PM

Cc [ ::-
Subject: Grouse Licensing issue

| note the following from the GWCT s facebook page, posted today.
“Urgent Update: Licensing Scheme for Grouse Shooting Launch! ©

We've been advised by Scottish Land & Estates that grouse moor managers should delay
submitting grouse shoot licence applications, pending resolution of a legal issue which came to
light in discussions between Scottish Land & Estates and NatureScot at the end of last week
(12/7/24).

It was expected that this would be resolved this week, but the position remains unclear. The
pause will ensure that all licences are submitted comrectly and accurately.

The legal issue relates to the area of land to which the licence relates. Once there is clarity on
the legal position from Scottish Land & Estates, we will provide a further update.”

Grateful if you can provide any details.

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

Thoiribh an aire airson adhbharan gnothaich, ‘s docha gun teid suil a chumail air puist-dealain a’ tighinn a-steach agus a’
dol a- mach bho NadarAlba.
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Cantiond This messago was sent from calside NaheeScol

We are very concerned that the grouse shoot licensing system that we and many others hoped and
understood the Wildlife Management and Muirburn Act 2025 (WM Act) would deliver = being steadily
ercded, and that we are rapidly approaching a situation where we think it will be virtually impossible for the
lieeneing autharty to suspend or revoke a llieence, even if 2 agrant breach of the lw ocewrs.

Many stakiholders had input to the Parliamentary process as the Bill proceeded through its various stages;
responding to consultations; having meetings with M5Ps; giving verbal and written evidence; and providing
briefings. Serutiny of the Bill and the amendments lodged wad an open and trandparent process. The Growse
Shooting Code of Practice meetings gave the opportunity for broad consensus to be achieved across a
siFnilar wide range of stakehalders, and it was accepted that thene was an intrinsic relationship between the
legislation, the Code and the licence conditions.

However, many of the organisations intimately involved throughout the independent "Waerritty Review™;
the passage of the Bil: and the farmulation of the Code of Practice; have not, as far a5 we are aware, been
given any opporiunity to be involved in the process of drawing up, commenting on, or amending suggested
leenee condithong. In ouf view, this is contrary to what NatureSeot said in evidence given in the Seottish
Pariament, when it was stated more than once that in constructing a licensing framework that NatureScot
“will work with stakehaolders 1o set out the type of evidence that we will congider and the croumstances in
which we would consider suspension, revocation or modification”. However, NatureSoots robust position
on land to be covered by a licence just a few months ago, appears to have changed markedly following
exclusive discussions with S5LE and perhaps also other land management stakeholders onby.

We now appear to have a situation where grouse shooting Bcences are only required to cover the area
where grouse are shot, rather than a whole landholding — while MatureScot have stated that they expect
that to cover the whole grouse meor, that is entirely down to the applicant, who could simply map a ring
round their grouse butts to be legally compliant. This is far from the understanding that we have had
throughout the legislative process.

Az a licence holder curselves on RSPE Scottand land, we have recently been informed by NatureScot of a
new grouse shooting cence condition about raptor persecution, which raises further questions.

Lintil this new licence condition was snnounced, it appeared that any relevant offence oocurring outside the
rmappead and Beensad area did not fit into the criteria under the new section 16AA[8)] of the WCA that could
lead to a licence being suspended or revoked. The new wildlife crime licencing condition perhaps attempts
it eddress this with respect to raptor persecution, but not any other offences.

The new candition aleo creates a "due dikgence’ defence for a licence holder to have taken “reasonable
steps” toensure that their employees do not break the law with respect 1o raptor parsecution. This
‘defence” presumably is something that would be considered by a Sheriff if an appeal relating to a llcence
suspension is lodged, and is surely not for the Boensing authority to assess? Given this defence is already
writtan into vicarious liability legislation that is already part of the 1981 Act [as amended) we wonder why
this is now included as part of a new licence condition ?

The new guidance states that this new "wildlife crime licensing condition” will apply cutside of the licensed
area of a landholding but only where offences committed are refoted to manegement of the grouse moar, In
a scenario where a buzzard is found dying in an Hlegally-set pole trap on a sporting estate, 2km away from



the licensed grouse moor, we question what evidence will be required, and how it will be obtained, to allow
an assessment if that crime was linked to grouse moor management, particularly if it was an estate that also
had pheasant shooting? In summary, we believe that this new condition means that establishing a link
between raptor persecution offences and grouse moor management, and to act as a meaningful deterrent
to wildlife crimes, will now require a burden of proof that will be virtually impossible to achieve.

We are exceedingly concerned that the intention of the WMM Act will not be delivered by the current
licensing system, largely because new licence conditions will allow estate employees to continue to commit
wildlife crime offences and avoid any sanctions for their employer.

We urgently request written answers to the key questions we ask below;

e Which stakeholders were consulted during the process of reassessing what area of land should be
covered by a grouse shooting licence?

e Were Police Scotland or the National Wildlife Crime Unit involved in the drawing up of the new
wildlife crime licence condition?

e Which stakeholders were consulted with regard to the new wildlife crime licence condition?

e Why does the new wildlife crime licence condition only relate to raptor persecution and not to
the other relevant offences included in the Act?

e How does NatureScot intend to establish if an offence away from a licensed grouse shooting area
is related to management of the grouse moor?

e We also ask what, if any, guidance NatureScot has had to ensure that an offence outside an area
covered by a grouse shooting licence can lead to potential licence revocation or suspension that
will stand up to legal challenge?

We look forward to hearing your thoughts on these matters and would like a meeting to discuss these
points at the earliest opportunity.

Best wishes

I . <55 Scotiand
I  :<10 0:5...«

The RSPB avocet brand mark

RSPB Scotland Headquarters
2 Lochside View

Edinburgh Park

Edinburgh

EH12 9DH

rspb.org.uk
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From:
To:
Subject: RE: Final text from Legal
Date: 10 October 2024 16:00:00

Text re the reason:

Following a review of the licencing process, NatureScot has decided to change its
approach to defining “the area of land to which land to which the licence relates” for all
existing and new licences.

The addition of the new condition relating to raptor control, will ensure that licence
holders will remain responsible, in defined circumstances, for raptor persecution
undertaken outside of the perimeter of the licenced area but as part of the management
of the land to which the licence relates.

The changes will provide for greater clarity for new applicants and existing licence
holders and provide for a more legally robust licensing scheme.

Thanks,

Sent: Thursday, October 10, 2024 3:49 PM

Subject: RE: Final text from Legal

H

Still working on the text under ‘reasons for the modification’ but final text for new condition
and permitted activities is:

The new condition (around raptor persecution).

‘1. The licence holder shall not do any act, and shall take reasonable steps to ensure that
no person within their employment or control shall do any act, for the purposes of or in
relation to the management of the land to which this licence relates which would be an
offence under sections 1, 5 or 6 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and
which:

1.1. involves any of the species mentioned at 2 of this condition; and
1.2. takes place on land other than the area of land to which this licence relates.

2. The species referred to at 1.1 of this condition are as follows:
Honey Buzzard (Pernis apivorus), Red Kite (Milvus milvus), White-tailed Eagle (Haliaeetus

albicilla), Eurasian Marsh Harrier (Circus aeruginosus), Hen Harrier (Circus cyaneus),
Northern Goshawk (Accipiter gentilis), Eurasian Sparrowhawk (Accipiter nisusll Common



Buzzard (Buteo buteo), Golden Eagle (Aquila chrysaetos), Osprey (Pandion haliaetus),
Common Kestrel (Falco tinnunculus), Merlin (Falco columbarius), Eurasian Hobby (Falco
Subbuteo), Peregrine Falcon (Falco peregrinus), Rough-legged buzzard (Buteo lagopus),
Barn Owl (Tyto alba), Little Owl (Athene Noctua), Tawny Owl (Strix aluco), Long-eared Owl
(Asio otus), Short-eared Owl (Asio flammeus), Snowy Owl (Nyctea scandiaca), Raven
(Corvus corax)’

Text for the ‘permitted activities’ section of the licence. The latest draft | have is:

‘The area of land to which this licence relates for the purposes of section 16AA(6)(a)(ii)
of the 1981 Act is the area specified on the map included in this licence.’

Thanks,

Sent: Wednesday, October 9, 2024 5:23 PM

Subject: Final text from Legal
Importance: High

Hi [l

| am tidying up the remaining grouse tickets following sprint planning today.
Before you go on leave, please can you confirm the final text for:

The new condition (around raptor persecution). The latest draft | have is:

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
1.2. takes place on land other than that to which this licence relates.

2. The species referred to at 1.1 of this condition are as follows:

Honey Buzzard (Pernis apivorus), Red Kite (Milvus milvus), White-tailed Eagle (Haliaeetus
albicilla), Eurasian Marsh Harrier (Circus aeruginosus), Hen Harrier (Circus cyaneus),
Northern Goshawk (Accipiter gentilis), Eurasian Sparrowhawk (Accipiter nisusly Common
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

‘The area of land to which this licence relates for the purposes of section 16AA(6)(a)(ii) of
the 1981 Act is the area specified by the licence holder on the map submitted with the
licence application as the area on which the licence holder may take or kill red grouse.’

The ‘Reason for modification’ (this will be included in the modification email when
sent to licence holders) - | have tweaked the latest draft based on the recent email -
does this look ok?

'This licence was modified due to a change in NatureScot guidance.

The area of land to which this licence relates is specified in the map referenced on this
licence.

A new condition was inserted relating to the prevention of raptor persecution.’

Thanks

_ People and Organisational Development

NatureScot | Caspian House | Clydebank Business Park | G81 2NR | t: 014 6|l
nature.scot | @nature_scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba



To:

G¢-

Suhject: - Gerowrse Boence concebion [OFFICIAL]
Date: 31 Octobed 2024 16:50:52

Caution] This massage was sent from oulside MNatureSool

OFFICIAL

Than ks-and-

| appraciata the attempt made to shore up tha situation and Know my concams an too late
but on looking at this | instantly saa three iIssuas;

= [ake reasonable steps-licence holder: "their contract of employment clearly
stipulates they must not comimit any wildlife crime”™

= for the purposas of or in relation to the managameént of the land - we can't evidencea
motive.

® species referred to at 1.1. 1 of this condition are as follows: - why just the list of birds
rathar than tha full list of relevant alfenceas. Amy of the full list of offences can bea
done with tha motive baing protection of grouse stocks.

Regards

me:_.:'i_:'l nature, scot=

Sent: 31 October 2024 16:28
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Subject: Grouse licence condition

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.



Hi all,
- has sent the new condition through and asked me to share it with you:

1. The licence holder shall not do any act, and shall take reasonable steps to ensure that no
person within their employment or control shall do any act, for the purposes of or in relation
to the management of the land to which this licence relates which would be an offence
under sections 1, 5 or 6 of the 1981 Act and which:

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
(Accipiter gentilis), Eurasian Sparrowhawk (Accipiter nisus), Common Buzzard (Buteo buteo),

Golden Eagle (Aquila chrysaetos), Osprey (Pandion haliaetus), Common Kestrel (Falco tinnunculus),
Merlin (Falco columbarius), Eurasian Hobby (Falco Subbuteo), Peregrine Falcon (Falco peregrinus),
Rough-legged buzzard (Buteo lagopus), Barn Owl (Tyto alba), Little Owl (Athene Noctua), Tawny Owl
(Strix aluco), Long-eared Owl (Asio otus), Short-eared Owl (Asio flammeus), Snowy Owl (Nyctea
scandiaca), Raven (Corvus corax)

Regards

I - i cfe Management
NatureScot | I

nature.scot | @nature_scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba
| work compressed hours with alternate Fridays off.

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
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